
TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
Weaverville Town Hall, 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, NC 28787 
Remote Meeting via Zoom Meeting: 
http://us02web.zoom.us/j/87513712738 - Meeting ID: 875 1371 2738 
Dial +1 253 215 8782 or +1 301 715 8592 – Meeting ID: 875 1371 2738 

AGENDA 

May 18, 2020 
Public Hearings at 6:30pm 

Regular Meeting at 7:00 pm 

On a temporary basis, general public comments must be submitted in advance of the meeting. Comments are limited to no more than 450 words and must 
observe normal rules of decorum. General public comments will be limited to 18 minutes and only comments that are timely received will be read into the record 
during the general public comment period. All comments timely received will be provided to Town Council and included as part of the minutes of the meeting. 
Public comments can be submitted as follows: (1) by emailing to public-comment@weavervillenc.org  at least 6 hours prior to the meeting, (2) by putting your 
written comment in a drop box at Town Hall (located at front entrance and back parking lot) at least 6 hours prior to the meeting, (3) by mailing your written 
comment (must be received not later than Monday’s mail delivery) to: Town of Weaverville, PO Box 338, Weaverville, NC, 28787, Attn: Public Comments. For 
assistance in providing public comments, please call (828)645-7116. 

Pg # Presenter 

1. Public Hearing: Code Amendments regarding parking and streets, mandated notices
for quasi-judicial matters, mixed use development in C-1, C-2 and R-12 districts …….…… 4 Planning Director 

2. Public Hearing: Conditional Zoning District for Multi-Tenant Development on
20 and 30 Garrison Branch Rd …………………………..………………………………………………………….. 19 Planning Director 

1. Call to Order ...................................................................................................................... Mayor Root 

2. Approval/Adjustments to the Agenda .............................................................................. 1 Mayor Root 

3. Approval of Minutes ……………………………………………………………………………………..………........ Mayor Root 
A. April 27, 2020 Town Council Meeting Minutes ............................................................ 38 

4. General Public Comments (see below for submission instructions) ….…………………......... Town Clerk 

5. Consent Agenda ............................................................................................................... Town Manager 
A. Monthly Tax Report ………………………………………………..................................................... 
B. Approval of Final Subdivision Plat and Improvement Guarantee for Greenwood

Park Phase I ……………………………….…………………………………………………………………………….. 
C. Approval of FY 2019-2020 Audit Contract ………………………………………………………………… 
D. Amendments to Fee Schedule ………………….……………………………………………………………… 

42 

44 
50 
71 

6. Town Manager’s Report .................................................................................................... 72 Town Manager 

7. Discussion & Action Items
A. Public Street Commitment Applications ….................................................................... 
B. Code Amendment – Chapter 24 – Streets …….………….................................................. 
C. Action on Proposed Code Amendments regarding parking and streets, mandated

notices for quasi-judicial matters, mixed use development in C-1, C-2 and R-12 …….. 
D. Action on Proposed Conditional Zoning District for Multi-Tenant Development

at 20 and 30 Garrison Branch Road …………………………………………………………………………. 
E. COVID-19 Update ………………………………………………………………………………………………….... 
F. Quarterly Report – Finance Department ...................................................................... 
G. Quarterly Report – Police Department ......................................................................... 
H. Quarterly Report – Fire Department …………….…………………………………………………………. 

74 
137 

144 

155 
160 
161 
175 
181 

PW & Planning 
Town Attorney 

Planning Director 

Planning Director 
Town Manager 
Finance Director 
Police Chief 
Fire Chief 

8. Recess Meeting to Wednesday, May 20, 2020 at 6pm
[same Zoom Meeting information – see above] ….…………………………………………………….….. Mayor Root 

1

http://us02web.zoom.us/j/87513712738
mailto:public-comment@weavervillenc.org


TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
NOTICE OF SPECIAL CALLED MEETING, 

NOTICE OF REMOTE ELECTRONIC MEETING, AND 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

PUBLIC NOTICE is hereby given that the Weaverville Town Council will hold a special called 
meeting on Monday, May 18, 2020, beginning at 6:30p.m., for the purpose of holding a Public 
Hearing(s) on the following matters: (1) a proposed text amendment related to parking, streets 
and mandated notices for quasi-judicial public hearings; (2) a proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment to permit mixed use structures with additional standards in the C-1, C-2 and R-12 
zoning districts; and (3) a proposed conditional zoning district to permit a multi-tenant 
development of 25,000 square feet or more on the property commonly known as 10 and 30 
Garrison Branch Road.   

This public hearing will occur within Council Chambers at Town Hall located at 30 South Main 
Street, Weaverville, NC and as an electronic video meeting via Zoom Meeting. Access to the 
public hearing will begin at 6:15 p.m. and the hearing will start at 6:30 p.m. WRITTEN PUBLIC 
COMMENTS can also be submitted in advance of the public hearing and will be read into the 
record of the public hearing. Written public comments can be submitted as follows: (1) by 
EMAILING to public-comment@weavervillenc.org  at least 6 hours prior to the meeting, (2) by 
putting your written comment in a DROP BOX at Town Hall (located at front entrance and back 
parking lot) at least 6 hours prior to the meeting, or (3) BY MAILING your written comment 
(must be received not later than Monday’s mail delivery on May 22) to: Town of Weaverville, 
PO Box 338, Weaverville, NC, 28787, Attn: Public Comments.   

In compliance with the Buncombe County Local State of Emergency Declaration dated March 
19, 2020, that prohibits gatherings of more than 10 people in Buncombe County, in person 
attendance by the public may be limited or staggered and social distancing during the hearing 
will be required.  

The INSTRUCTIONS TO ACCESS THE REMOTE ELECTRONIC PUBLIC MEETING are: 

To join the meeting BY COMPUTER, use this link:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87513712738 . 
You may be asked for permission to access your computer’s video and audio. If so, click “allow.” 
You will then be asked for the Meeting ID which is: 875 1371 2738 . 

To join the meeting BY PHONE, call: (253) 215-8782 or (301) 715 8592. You will then be asked 
for the Meeting ID which is: 875 1371 2738 . 

If you would like ADDITIONAL INFORMATION or to review the content related to the Public 
Hearing, or have questions regarding how to submit a comment or join the meeting,  you may 
contact Planning Director and Deputy Town Clerk James Eller at 828-484-7002 or 
jeller@weavervillenc.org. 

2

mailto:public-comment@weavervillenc.org
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87513712738
mailto:jeller@weavervillenc.org


NOTICE OF WEAVERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING   
REMOTE ELECTRONIC MEETING ON MAY 18, 2020  

  
The State of North Carolina, Buncombe County and the Town of Weaverville have all declared 
States of Emergency in response to the COVID-19 public health crisis. Emergency restrictions 
intended to slow the spread of the coronavirus and COVID19 include, among other things: 
requiring individuals to remain in their homes, except for certain essential activities, closing 
many businesses to the public, and prohibiting any gatherings which do not comply with its 
terms.  Because of the risks to the public that would arise from in-person meetings, and in 
accordance with N.C. Gen. Stat. § 166A-19.24, the Town’s regular meeting on May 18, 2020 will 
be conducted via remote electronic format.  

This NOTICE OF REMOTE ELECTRONIC MEETING is to inform the public that the 
Weaverville Town Council will hold its regularly scheduled meeting on Monday, May 18, 
2020 at 7:00 p.m. as an electronic video/audio meeting via Zoom Meeting. Access to the 
meeting will begin at 6:30 p.m. for public hearings and the regular meeting will start at 
7:00 p.m. The instructions to access this public meeting are:  

To join the meeting by computer, go to this link  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87513712738 .  You may be asked for permission to access 
your computer’s video and audio. If so, click “allow.” You will then be asked for the Meeting 
ID which is: 875 1371 2738  
To join the meeting by phone, call: (253) 215-8782 or (301)715 8592 . You will then be 
asked for the Meeting ID which is:  875 1371 2738 . There is no password for this meeting, 
so if asked for one just press the # button.  
To listen to an audio recording of the meeting and view related materials, please visit 
the Town’s website at https://www.weavervillenc.org. An audio recording of the meeting 
will be posted to the Town’s website for public access within 24 hours of the meeting.  

General Public Comments – On a temporary basis, general public comments must be submitted 
in advance of the meeting. Comments are limited to no more than 450 words and must observe 
normal rules of decorum. Only comments that are timely received will be read into the record 
during the public comment period. Public comments can be submitted as follows: 

By emailing to public-comment@weavervillenc.org at least 6 hours prior to the meeting 
By putting your written comment in a drop box at Town Hall (located at front entrance 
and back parking lot) at least 6 hours prior to the meeting 
By mailing your written comment (must be received not later than Monday’s mail 
delivery) to: Town of Weaverville, PO Box 338, Weaverville, NC, 28787, Attn: Public 
Comments 

For questions or additional assistance in how to participate in this meeting or in providing public 
comments, please call (828)645-7116. 

Allan P. Root, Mayor  
5/11/2020  

3

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/
https://www.weavervillenc.org/
mailto:public-comment@weavervillenc.org


TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

PUBLIC HEARING 

Date of Meeting: 

Subject: 

Presenter:  

Attachments: 

Monday, May 18, 2020 

Public Hearing on Proposed Text Amendments Related to 
Parking, Streets, Mandated Notices for the Board of 
Adjustment, and Mixed Use Development in C-1, C-2 and R-12 

Planning Director 

Planning and Zoning Board Recommendation
Proposed Amendments 

Description: 

Staff has prepared, in conjunction with the Planning and Zoning Board, a set of proposed 
text amendments which would ensure code consistency in light of Town Council’s work 
on their general police power ordinances regarding streets and parking. 

Language related to the mandated notices for quasi-judicial matters proposes to align the 
Town’s noticing requirements with that of state statute.  

Revisions related to mixed use development in the C-1, C-2, and R-12 districts would 
convert mixed use from conditional zoning district review to permitted with standards.

Action Requested: 

Due to newly enacted regulations placed upon public hearings held during a statewide 
public health emergency, a governing board must also allow public comment to occur an 
additional 24 hours after the public hearing. Therefore, action is not allowed at this time. 
Town Council may take action at a later meeting or recess the current meeting long 
enough to comply with the new 24 hour requirement for public comment after the public 
hearing. 

4



Town of Weaverville 
Planning and Zoning Board 

On Thursday, March 5, 2020, the Planning and Zoning Board reviewed and unanimously 
recommended to Town Council the attached proposed text amendments which pertain to streets, 
parking, and mandated notice for quasi-judicial hearings. The proposed amendments represent, in 
large part, the revisions of the land use regulations related to Town Council’s work on its police power 
ordinances regarding streets, traffic, and parking.  

It has been found that the proposed text amendments are consistent with the Town’s Comprehensive 
Plan in that the plan sets a goal of reviewing policies concerning standards for private streets and 
encourages review of regulations to ensure consistency with stated goals.  

The Planning and Zoning Board considers these amendments both reasonable and in the public 
interest in light of Town Council’s recent comprehensive review of Chapters 24 concerning streets and 
Chapter 28 concerning traffic and parking and anticipated amendments to those Code Chapters, and 
by providing better clarity in its regulations and removing inconsistencies between Code chapters. 

_______________________________________ 

Gary Burge 
Chairman, Planning and Zoning Board 

5



PROPOSED CODE AMENDMENTS TO LAND USE REGULATIONS 
REGARDING STREETS, PARKING, AND MANDATED NOTICE FOR QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARINGS 
AS RECOMMENDED BY STAFF AND THE PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 

1 

Sec. 25-111. - Streets.  

(a) Type of street required. All subdivision lots shall abut on a "public" street as herein defined or on a
"private" street with reference to which there is a duly recorded maintenance agreement as provided
for in this chapter. All public streets may be dedicated to the town or to the state. All public and
private streets shall be built to the standards of this chapter established in Chapter 24 and all other
applicable standards of the town and the state department of transportation, whichever is the more
restrictive standard.

A written maintenance agreement providing for maintenance of the street until it is added to the town
or state highway system shall be included with the final plat. Such agreement shall be recorded as
provided for in other sections of this chapter.

(b) Subdivision street disclosure statement. All streets shown on the final plat shall comply with the
provisions of G.S. 136-102.6 and a designation as "public" shall be conclusively presumed to be an
offer of dedication to the town or state. Where streets are offered to be dedicated but are not finally
accepted into the town or state system, before lots are sold, a statement explaining the status of the
street shall be included on the final plat.

(c) Access to adjacent properties. Where, in the opinion of the planning and zoning board and/or the
town council, it may be necessary to provide for public street access to an adjoining property not
within the subdivision proposed streets shall, as allowed by law, be extended by dedication to the
boundary of such public adjoining property and a temporary turnaround provided. The extension
dedicated shall have the same right-of-way width as the street being extended.

(d) Nonresidential streets. The subdivider of a nonresidential subdivision shall provide streets
constructed in accordance with I.F-4 of the North Carolina Department of Transportation, Division of 
Highways Subdivision Roads Minimum Construction Standards, July 1, 1985, as amended, and the 
standards in this chapter, whichever are stricter in regard to each particular item. 

(e) Design standards. The design of all streets and roads within the jurisdiction of this chapter shall be 
in accordance with the accepted policies of the state department of transportation, division of 
highways, which are patterned on the American Association of State Highway Officials (AASHO) 
manuals. The North Carolina Department of Transportation, Division of Highways Subdivision Roads 
Minimum Construction Standards, July 1, 1985, as amended, shall apply for any items not included 
in this chapter, or where they may be stricter than this chapter. 

(f) Other requirements.

(1) Through traffic discouraged on residential collector and local streets. Residential collector and
local streets shall be laid out in such a way that their use by through traffic will be discouraged.
Provision shall be made for the free flow of traffic so as not to cause undue congestion. All
streets shall be designed or walkways shall be dedicated to assure convenient access to parks,
playgrounds, schools, or other places of public assembly. 

(2) Sidewalks. Sidewalks may be required as provided in Sec. 36-24. by the planning and zoning
board or the town council on one or both sides of a street in areas likely to be subject to heavy
pedestrian traffic such as near schools and shopping areas, or in other areas as deemed 
appropriate by the planning and zoning board or by the town council. Such sidewalks shall be 
constructed to a minimum width of five feet, and shall consist of a minimum thickness of four 
inches of concrete. All sidewalks shall be within the street right-of-way, unless the subdivision is 
platted as a planned unit or group development. Sidewalks shall consist of a minimum of eight 
inches of concrete at driveway crossings and at handicapped ramps. 

(3) Street names. Street names shall be subject to the approval of Buncombe County E-911
Addressing. Proposed streets which are in alignment with existing streets and which will
constitute extension of the existing street shall be given the same name as the existing street. In
assigning new street names, duplication of existing names shall be avoided. In no case shall a 

Commented [JJ1]: Street standards are consolidated in 
Chapter 24. 

Commented [JJ2]: Street standards are consolidated in 
Chapter 24 

Commented [JJ3]: Street standards are consolidate in 
Chapter 24 

6



PROPOSED CODE AMENDMENTS TO LAND USE REGULATIONS 
REGARDING STREETS, PARKING, AND MANDATED NOTICE FOR QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARINGS 
AS RECOMMENDED BY STAFF AND THE PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 

2 

proposed street name be phonetically similar to an existing street name used in Buncombe 
County irrespective of the use of a suffix such as street, road, drive, place, court, etc. Street 
names shall be subject to the approval of the planning and zoning board and/or the town 
council. 

(4) Street name and other signs. All subdividers shall be required to provide and erect street name
signs to town standards at all intersections within the subdivision. Subdividers shall also erect
traffic control and directional signs in appropriate locations.

(5) Permits for connection to state roads. An approved permit shall be required for connection to an
existing state system road. Such permit shall be required prior to any construction on the street
or road. A permit application may be obtained at the office of the nearest district engineer of the
division of highways.

(6) Offsets to utility poles. Poles for overhead utilities shall be located back from roadway
shoulders, preferably a minimum of at least 30 feet from the edge of pavement on major
thoroughfares. On streets with curb and gutter, utility poles should be set back a minimum
distance of six feet from the face of the curb.

(7) ADA accessibility Ramps for handicapped persons. Where curbs are provided on streets or
where curbs and sidewalks are constructed within any subdivision, any construction or
reconstruction of such curbs and sidewalks shall be in full compliance with ADA accessibility
standards. the provisions of G.S. 136-44.14 which sets forth standards for providing curb ramps
or curb cuts for handicapped persons.

(8) Guard rails. Guardrails may be required in areas of danger where deemed appropriate by the
planning and zoning board or by the town council. Guardrails must be constructed in
accordance with the minimum standards for subdivisions as established by North Carolina
Department of Transportation or the North Carolina Fire Prevention Code, whichever is stricter.

(9) Horizontal width for bridge decks. Bridges. Bridges must be constructed in accordance with the
minimum standards for subdivisions as established by North Carolina Department of
Transportation or the North Carolina Fire Prevention Code, whichever is stricter.

a. The clear roadway widths for new and reconstructed bridges serving two-lane, two-way
traffic shall be as follows: 

1. Shoulder section approach.

Under 800 ADT Design Year: Minimum 28 feet width face-to-face of parapets or rails 
or pavement width plus ten feet, whichever is greater. 

800—2000 ADT Design Year: Minimum 34 feet width face-to-face of parapets or rails 
or pavement width plus 12 feet, whichever is greater. 

Over 2000 ADT Design Year: Minimum 40 feet. Desirable 44 feet width face-to-face of 
parapets or rails. 

2. Curb and gutter approach.

Under 800 ADT Design Year: Minimum 24 feet face-to-face of curbs. 

Over 800 ADT Design Year: Width of approach pavement measured face-to-face of 
curbs. 

Where curb and gutter sections are used on roadway approaches, curbs on bridges 
shall match the curbs on approaches in height, in width of face-to-face of curbs, and in 
crown drop. The distance from face of curb to face of parapet or rail shall be three feet 
minimum, or greater if sidewalks are required. 

Commented [JJ4]: NCDOT or Fire Prevention Code 
Standards 

Commented [JJ5]: NCDOT or Fire Prevention Code 
Standards 

7



PROPOSED CODE AMENDMENTS TO LAND USE REGULATIONS 
REGARDING STREETS, PARKING, AND MANDATED NOTICE FOR QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARINGS 
AS RECOMMENDED BY STAFF AND THE PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 

3 

b. The clear roadway widths for new and reconstructed bridges having four or more lanes
serving undivided two-way traffic shall be as follows: 

1. Shoulder section approach. Width of approach pavement plus width of usable
shoulders on the approach left and right. 

2. Curb and gutter approach. Width of approach pavement measured face-to face of curbs.

(10) Curbs and gutter.  Street curbs and gutters must be constructed in accordance with the street
standards established in Chapter 24. Curbs and gutters shall be provided where deemed
necessary by the town council upon recommendation of the planning and zoning board, the
street maintenance superintendent, and/or the town's consulting engineer in order to provide 
adequate drainage because of high traffic volume, poor soil conditions, or where other similar 
conditions or special problems exist which justify the necessity of curbs and gutters. 

Sec. 36-12. Street access. 

Sec. 36-176. - Off-street parking.  

(a) Off-street automobile storage or parking space shall be provided on every lot on which any of the
following uses are hereafter established. Each parking space shall have an all weather surface with
minimum dimensions of nine by 18 feet. The number of parking spaces provided shall be at least as
great as the number specified below for various uses. Each space shall be provided with vehicular
access to a street or alley.

[TABLE NOT CHANGED] 

(b) Extension of parking space into a residential district. Required parking space may not extend from a
commercial (C-1 and C-2) use district or from a conditional use district (CZD) that contains any
commercial or office use into any residential use district.

(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing, no additional off-street parking other than the parking currently
available in the C-1 central business district shall be required except where the structures currently
located on an existing lot of record containing more than 1,875 square feet are razed and the lot of
record is put to a new use in which event the parking regulations of section 36-176 shall be fully
applicable to said property.

(d) Joint use of parking lots. The required parking space for any number of separate uses may be
combined in one lot, but the required number of spaces assigned to one use may not be assigned to 
another for use during the same hours. 

(e) Remote parking.  For any use except residential, if the off-street parking spaces required by this 
division cannot be reasonably provided on the same lot on which the use is located, such spaces 
may be provided on any land within 800 feet walking distance of any entrance to such use, provided 
that the district use regulations for the district in which the remote parking spaces are located permit 
the use which the parking space serves.  

Sec. 36-177. - Off-street loading.  

Commented [JJ6]: Reviewed. No amendment requested.

Commented [JJ7]: Sec. 28-101 deleted in favor of this 
section. 

Commented [JJ8]: Policy Discussion; moved from Sec. 28-
103 

Commented [JJ9]: Policy Discussion; moved from Sec. 28-
105 

Commented [JJ10]: No changes needed; Sec. 28-101 
deleted in favor of this section. 

8



PROPOSED CODE AMENDMENTS TO LAND USE REGULATIONS 
REGARDING STREETS, PARKING, AND MANDATED NOTICE FOR QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARINGS 
AS RECOMMENDED BY STAFF AND THE PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 

4 

Sec. 36-329. - Hearings and notices.  

(a) Hearing . The zoning board of adjustment shall hold a public hearing and enter a written decision on
all matters upon which it is required to decide under this chapter. The public hearing shall be held
within 30-days 45 days after receipt by the town clerk of an application for a special use permit or
variance or a notice of appeal, unless otherwise agreed to by the applicant. The board shall follow
quasi-judicial procedures when deciding appeals, requests for variances and requests for special
use permits. The board shall decide the matter within 60-days after the conclusion of the hearing.
Upon a hearing before the zoning board of adjustment, any party may appear in person, or by agent,
or by an attorney.

(b) Notice . Notice of the time and the place of the public hearing shall be published weekly for two
consecutive weeks in a newspaper of general circulation in the town. The first weekly notice shall be
published not less than ten days nor more than 25 days before the date fixed for the public hearing. 
In computing such period, the day of publication is not to be included, but the day of the hearing shall 
be included. Notice of hearings shall be mailed to the person or entity whose appeal, application or 
request is the subject of the hearing; to the owner of the property that is the subject of the hearing if 
the owner did not initiate the hearing; and to the owners of all parcels of land abutting the parcel of 
land that is the subject of the hearing and to all property owners within 500 feet of the property 
boundaries even if their property is not abutting. Notice to such persons or entities must be deposited 
in the mail at least ten days, but not more than 25 days, prior to the date of the hearing. Within that 
same time period, a notice of hearing shall be prominently posted on the site that is the subject of the 
hearing or on an adjacent street or highway right-of-way.  

(c) Oaths . The chair of the board of adjustment or any member temporarily acting as chair and the
clerk to the board are authorized to administer oaths to witnesses in any matter coming before the
board. Any person who, while under oath during a proceeding before the board of adjustment,
willfully swears falsely is guilty of a class 1 misdemeanor.

(d) Subpoenas . The board of adjustment through the chair, or in the chair's absence anyone acting as
chair, may subpoena witnesses and compel the production of evidence. To request issuance of a
subpoena, persons with standing under G.S. § 160A-393(d) may make a written request to the chair
explaining why it is necessary for certain witnesses or evidence to be compelled. The chair shall
issue requested subpoenas he or she determines to be relevant, reasonable in nature and scope,
and not oppressive. The chair shall rule on any motion to quash or modify a subpoena. Decisions
regarding subpoenas made by the chair may be appealed to the full board of adjustment. If a person
fails or refuses to obey a subpoena issued pursuant to this subsection, the board of adjustment or
the party seeking the subpoena may apply to the general court of justice for an order requiring that
its subpoena be obeyed, and the court shall have jurisdiction to issue these orders after notice to all
proper parties.

Commented [JJ11]: For consistency with the new BOA
rules of procedure; 45 days better allows for the required 
noticing 

Commented [JJ12]: Provisions that the Board of
Adjustment, SOG, and staff recommend deleting so as to 
perfectly align with the notice requirements provided in 
statute. SOG cautions that the wider the notice bubble on 
quasi-judicial hearings the more susceptible you are to 
challenge on issue of standing.   

9



Town of Weaverville 
Planning and Zoning Board 

On Tuesday, February 4, 2020 the Planning and Zoning Board reviewed and unanimously 
recommended to Town Council the attached proposed text amendment which formally permits with 
standards certain mixed use development with the Town’s C-1, C-2 and R-12 zoning districts. Mixed 
use development is currently only allowed as a conditional zoning district. The text amendment 
recommended would allow for a more expedited approval process and developmental certainty for 
mixed use projects that can meet the standards proposed. 

It has been found that the proposed text amendment is consistent with the Town’s Comprehensive 
Plan in that the plan calls for language related to a transitional district and mixed use development as 
follows: 

Consider land use regulation that provides for transition districts; and consider land use 
regulation that better provides for mixed use development. 

The Planning and Zoning Board considers approval both reasonable and in the public interest as the 
Town’s Strategic Plan sets specific objectives of “consider a zoning district to serve as a transition 
between residential and commercial districts” and “consider mixed use development regulation as a 
means of expanding development in areas with geographic limitations” under the overall goal of 
promoting a successful downtown. 

_______________________________________ 

Gary Burge 
Chairman, Planning and Zoning Board 

10



Sec. 36-5. - Definitions of specific words and terms.  

Mixed-use building or development. A multi-story building or structure which may accommodate both 
commercial and residential uses. A group of mixed-use buildings or structures can be combined to form a 
mixed-use development.  

Sec. 36-104. - Notes on table of uses.  

Notes:  

1.  See article V (section 36-116 et seq.) for additional standards for those uses identified on the 
Table of Uses as "permitted with standards."  

2.  If a proposed use can't be found on the table of uses herein established or is not specifically 
defined herein, then the regulations and restrictions governing the use which most closely 
resembles the proposed use shall apply.  

3.  The abbreviations and symbols shown in the Table of Uses have the following meanings:  

"C"  = Conditional Zoning District required  

"P"  = Permitted  

"PS" = Permitted with Standards  

"-"   = Not Permitted  

Sec. 36-105. - Table of uses.  

USES  R-1  R-2  R-3  R-12  C-1  C-2  I-1  

MISCELLANEOUS USES  

Mixed-Use Building or Structure  -  -  -  
C 

PS  

C  

PS 

C 

PS  
-  

11



 

Sec. 36-140. – Mixed-Use Building or Structure.  

(a)  Additional Standards applicable only within the R-12 zoning district for uses defined mixed use 
building or structure. 

1. Dwelling units are only permissible on the second or higher floor of any structure where the 
ground floor or street level floor is occupied by a use or uses otherwise permitted by right or 
with additional standards or by a conditional zoning district in the C-1 or C-2 Zoning District. 

2. The dimensional requirements for the R-12 zoning district and additional standards for the use 
defined as dwelling-multifamily (more than 4 units/per building are also fully applicable to the 
use defined mixed-use building or structure. 

3. In no case shall the number of dwelling units exceed 12 units per acre. 
4. Street lighting requirements made necessary by section 36-26 are fully applicable to the use of 

mixed use building or structure as defined in section 36-5 except that such requirements are 
hereby modified to provide the following: 

a. All lighting on the property shall be mounted on posts no more than 16 feet tall. 
b. Blocking, shielding and aiming of all exterior lighting shall be used to minimize light 

trespass on to adjoining residential properties. 
c. The exterior lighting plan shall be subject to review and approval by the town’s zoning 

administrator prior to installation. 
5. The collection and disposal of garbage and household trash accumulated at mixed use buildings 

or structures shall be the responsibility of the owner of the land on which the building is located. 
Likewise, yard trash, tree and shrubbery trimmings and household appliances shall be collected 
and disposed of by the owner of the land.  

6. All containment devices for trash and recyclables, including compactors, dumpsters, commercial 
roll-out bins, and areas for storing cardboard shall be placed in the side or rear yards only and 
located and designed so as not to be visible from the view of adjacent streets and properties. All 
containment areas shall meet the following standards: 

a. All containment areas shall be enclosed to contain windblown litter. 
b. Enclosures shall be at least as high as the highest point of the compactor or dumpster. 
c. Enclosures shall be made of materials that are opaque at the time of installation (such 

as a fence, wall or mature opaque vegetation) and compatible with and/or similar to the 
design and materials of the principal building. 

d. Compactors and dumpsters shall be placed on a concrete pad that is large enough to 
provide adequate support and allow for positive drainage, and conform to the 
Buncombe County Health Department regulations governing compactor pads. A 
concrete apron shall also extend from the pad for support and access. 

e. Enclosures shall contain gates to allow for access and security. 
f. Dumpsters and compactors shall be located within the side or rear yard behind buildings 

and away from sidewalks or pedestrian circulation. Such locations should be accessible 
to service vehicles. 

g. Enclosures shall be landscaped in accordance with article VI of Chapter 36. 
 
(b)  Additional Standards applicable only within the C-1 zoning district for uses defined mixed use 

building or structure. 

12



1. Dwelling units are only permissible on the second or higher floor of any structure where the 
ground floor or street level floor is occupied by a use or uses otherwise permitted by right or 
with additional standards or by a conditional zoning district in the C-1 Zoning District. 

2. In no case shall the number of dwelling units exceed 4 units per building notwithstanding the 
latter permissible density bonus for additional off street parking places provided. 

3. Street lighting requirements made necessary by section 36-26 are fully applicable to the use of 
mixed use building or structure as defined in section 36-5 except that such requirements are 
hereby modified to provide the following: 

a. All lighting on the property shall be mounted on posts no more than 16 feet tall. 
b. Blocking, shielding and aiming of all exterior lighting shall be used to minimize light 

trespass on to adjoining residential properties. 
c. The exterior lighting plan shall be subject to review and approval by the town’s zoning 

administrator prior to installation. 
4. The collection and disposal of garbage and household trash accumulated at mixed use buildings 

or structures shall be the responsibility of the owner of the land on which the building is located. 
Likewise, yard trash, tree and shrubbery trimmings and household appliances shall be collected 
and disposed of by the owner of the land.  

a. A waiver of the foregoing requirement may be achieved in writing from the Town 
Manager or their designee upon showing of good cause. Factors for consideration 
include but are not limited to available space on the subject property, or any variable 
related to the public health or safety.     

5.  All containment devices for trash and recyclables, including compactors, dumpsters, commercial 
roll-out bins, and areas for storing cardboard shall be placed in the side or rear yards only and 
located and designed so as not to be visible from the view of adjacent streets and properties. All 
containment areas shall meet the following standards: 

b. All containment areas shall be enclosed to contain windblown litter. 
c. Enclosures shall be at least as high as the highest point of the compactor or dumpster. 
d. Enclosures shall be made of materials that are opaque at the time of installation (such 

as a fence, wall or mature opaque vegetation) and compatible with and/or similar to the 
design and materials of the principal building. 

e. Compactors and dumpsters shall be placed on a concrete pad that is large enough to 
provide adequate support and allow for positive drainage, and conform to the 
Buncombe County Health Department regulations governing compactor pads. A 
concrete apron shall also extend from the pad for support and access. Enclosures shall 
contain gates to allow for access and security. 

f. Enclosures shall contain gates to allow for access and security. 
g. Dumpsters and compactors shall be located within the side or rear yard behind buildings 

and away from sidewalks or pedestrian circulation. Such locations should be accessible 
to service vehicles. 

h. Enclosures shall be landscaped in accordance with article VI of Chapter 36. 
6. Within the C-1 Zoning District additional dwelling units may be permitted up to a maximum of 

eight dwelling units per building provided the property owner provide off street parking in 
addition to those spaces required by Article VII of this Chapter at a ratio of two spaces per 
additional dwelling unit.  

 
(c) Additional Standards applicable only within the C-2 zoning district for uses defined mixed use 

building or structure. 

13



1. Dwelling units are only permissible on the second or higher floor of any structure where the 
ground floor or street level floor is occupied by a use or uses otherwise permitted by right or 
with additional standards or by a conditional zoning district in the C-1 or C-2 Zoning District. 

2. The dimensional requirements for the C-2 zoning district and additional standards for the use 
defined as dwelling-multifamily (more than 4 units/per building are also fully applicable to the 
use defined mixed-use building or structure. 

3. In no case shall the number of dwelling units exceed 8 units per acre. 
4. Street lighting requirements made necessary by section 36-26 are fully applicable to the use of 

mixed use building or structure as defined in section 36-5 except that such requirements are 
hereby modified to provide the following: 

a. All lighting on the property shall be mounted on posts no more than 16 feet tall. 
b. Blocking, shielding and aiming of all exterior lighting shall be used to minimize light 

trespass on to adjoining residential properties. 
c. The exterior lighting plan shall be subject to review and approval by the town’s zoning 

administrator prior to installation. 
5. The collection and disposal of garbage and household trash accumulated at mixed use buildings 

or structures shall be the responsibility of the owner of the land on which the building is located. 
Likewise, yard trash, tree and shrubbery trimmings and household appliances shall be collected 
and disposed of by the owner of the land.  

6.  All containment devices for trash and recyclables, including compactors, dumpsters, commercial 
roll-out bins, and areas for storing cardboard shall be placed in the side or rear yards only and 
located and designed so as not to be visible from the view of adjacent streets and properties. All 
containment areas shall meet the following standards: 

a. All containment areas shall be enclosed to contain windblown litter. 
b. Enclosures shall be at least as high as the highest point of the compactor or dumpster. 
c. Enclosures shall be made of materials that are opaque at the time of installation (such 

as a fence, wall or mature opaque vegetation) and compatible with and/or similar to the 
design and materials of the principal building. 

d. Compactors and dumpsters shall be placed on a concrete pad that is large enough to 
provide adequate support and allow for positive drainage, and conform to the 
Buncombe County Health Department regulations governing compactor pads. A 
concrete apron shall also extend from the pad for support and access. Enclosures shall 
contain gates to allow for access and security. 

e. Enclosures shall contain gates to allow for access and security. 
f. Dumpsters and compactors shall be located within the side or rear yard behind buildings 

and away from sidewalks or pedestrian circulation. Such locations should be accessible 
to service vehicles. 

g. Enclosures shall be landscaped in accordance with article VI of Chapter 36. 

 

 

 

 

 

14



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina  
Staff Report: Mixed Use Development /  
                      Transitional District 

Prepared January 2020 

 
Sources:  
 

Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Strategic Plan 

 

Page 1 of 4 
 

Strategic Plan 
 
Through the adoption of the Town’s strategic plan, 2018-2021 Strategic Plan in Brief attached hereto, 
Town Council set a goal of promoting a successful downtown. Specific objectives toward this end were 
identified as “consider a zoning district to serve as a transition between residential and commercial 
districts” and “consider mixed use development regulation as a means of expanding development in 
areas with geographic limitations.”   
 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan 
 
Language related to a possible transition district and mixed use development is largely brought forth 
from the previously adopted strategic plan which Town Council adopted in November, 2018.  The 
aforementioned goals contained within the strategic plan transitioned to the stated goals of “consider 
land use regulation that provides for transition districts” and “consider land use regulation that better 
provides for mixed use development.” 
 
Existing Conditions 
 
As illustrated by the following residential section from the table of uses, there is a hard line between 
residential uses and non-residentially zoned districts. In short, no new residential uses are permitted 
within the C-1, C-2 and I-1 zoning districts. This hard line typically exists in most zoning ordinances 
between industrial and residential uses. However, most jurisdictions soften this distinction between 
commercial and residential uses or more specifically multifamily residential uses.  

Sec. 36-105. - Table of uses.  

USES  R-1  R-2  R-3  R-12  C-1  C-2  I-1  

RESIDENTIAL  

Dwelling - Single Family  P  P  P  -  -  -  -  

Dwelling - Duplex  -  P  P  P  -  -  -  

Dwelling - Multifamily (4 or fewer units/building)  -  P  P  P  -  -  -  

15



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina  
Staff Report: Mixed Use Development /  
                      Transitional District 

Prepared January 2020 

 
Sources:  
 

Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Strategic Plan 

 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Dwelling - Multifamily (more than 4 units/building)  -  -  PS  PS  -  -  -  

Dwelling - Secondary  PS  PS  PS  -  -  -  -  

Family Care Home (6 or fewer residents)  P  P  P  -  -  -  -  

Child Care Home (6 or fewer children)  PS  PS  PS  -  -  -  -  

Home Occupation  PS  PS  PS  PS  -  -  -  

Manufactured Home  -  -  PS  -  -  -  -  

Manufactured Home Park  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Recreational Vehicle  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Recreational Vehicle Park, Campground  -  -  -  -  -  C  C  

Bed & Breakfast  P  P  P  -  -  -  -  

Hotel, Motel, Inn  -  -  -  -  C  C  C  

It’s also fair to recognize that a mixed use building or structure is acknowledged by the zoning ordinance 
and is defined and regulated as follows. Conditions are present for the Planning and Zoning Board and 
Town Council to analyze mixed use development on an individual project basis through conditional 
zoning districts. 

Mixed-use building or development. A multi-story building or structure which may accommodate both 
commercial and residential uses. A group of mixed-use buildings or structures can be combined to form 
a mixed-use development. 

Sec. 36-105. - Table of uses.  

USES  R-1  R-2  R-3  R-12  C-1  C-2  I-1  

16



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina  
Staff Report: Mixed Use Development /  
                      Transitional District 

Prepared January 2020 

 
Sources:  
 

Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Strategic Plan 

 

Page 3 of 4 
 

MISCELLANEOUS USES  

Mixed-Use Building or Structure  -  -  -  C  C  C  -  

Direction to Staff 

Staff intends to address a number of topics in an effort to gain some consensus moving forward in 
drafting language related to the content of the conversation. These topics include but are not limited to 
the following… 

• Review of mixed use development and areas identified for future mixed use development on 
the future land use map within the Comprehensive Land Use Plan. (pgs. A-2, A-3 of CLUP) 
 

• Should the hard line between industrial uses and residential uses remain? 
• Infill considerations or strictly for new development? 
• Should new residential uses be permitted in the C-1 and C-2 Zoning Districts? If so, at what 

density? Reserve ground floor for commercial uses? 
• Should light commercial uses be permitted in some residentially zoned districts? If so, which 

uses and/or districts? Can the character of certain residential districts be maintained? 
• Are these objectives better addressed through the creation of a new zoning district or an 

amendment to existing zoning districts? 

Similar discussion topics from members of the Board are obviously welcome at the meeting.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

17



2018-2021 STRATEGIC PLAN IN BRIEF 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

Goal 1:  Provide town services to meet the needs of the community. 

Objective A: Development of tools to encourage balanced residential economic development. 

Objective B: Update economic development goals for the Town. 

Objective C: Update the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 

Objective D: Investigate options for geographic information systems. 

Goal 5:  Increase legislative outreach. 

Objective A: Engage legislative representatives regarding the Town’s needs.  

Objective B: Consider opportunities for potential special legislation as Town needs dictate.  

Goal 2:  Improve regional collaboration. 

Objective A: Develop consensus on water and annexation growth and develop policies consistent with that consensus. 

Objective B: Revisit the relationship with Asheville Redefines Transit to consider re-establishment of bus route given new  
residential development within the Town. 

Objective C: Enhance the Town’s outreach to educate the public about the Town’s services. 

Objective D: Recognize the needs of each Town department in serving an ever-changing and growing population.  

Goal 3:  Maintain balance in land use planning efforts. 

Objective A:   Strengthen relationship with the Asheville-Buncombe Economic Development Coalition and other economic  
development organizations. 

Objective B: Recognize water as a regional resource and identify regional jurisdictions that wish to partner in water  
production, sale and distribution. 

Objective C: Consistent involvement and collaboration with neighboring and regional jurisdictions in functional areas, such 
as police, fire, water resources, etc. 

Objective D: Distribute information regarding regional programs, services and resources available to town citizens. 

Goal 4:  Promote a successful downtown. 

Objective A: Consider a zoning district to serve as a transition between residential and commercial districts.  

Objective B: Develop a mechanism to expand business opportunities along the central business district.  

Objective C: Consider mixed-use development regulation as a means of expanding development in areas with geographic 
limitations.  

Objective D: Provide information resources marketing downtown and its walkability. 

Objective E: Research grant opportunities for all Town operations and projects, as well as for downtown efforts. 

Objective F: Act as a liaison between downtown churches and businesses to identify available parking downtown. 

Approved 11/19/2018

18



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

PUBLIC HEARING 

Date of Meeting: 

Subject: 

Presenter:  

Attachments: 

Monday, May 18, 2020 

Public Hearing on a Proposed Conditional Zoning District on 
the Property Commonly Known as Garrison Reserve at 10 and 
30 Garrison Branch Road 

Planning Director, Civil Design Concepts 

Planning and Zoning Board Recommendation, Staff Report, 
TRC Report, CZD Application and Plans 

Description: 

Staff is in possession of an executed conditional zoning district application for properties 
commonly known as 20 and 30 Garrison Branch Road which can be found at the 
intersection of Monticello Road and US25/70. Given that a CZD is proposed, initial review 
by Town Council is required. The application is calls for the establishment of a multi-tenant 
development of 25,000 square feet of more. Said development is permissible via a 
conditional zoning district from within the underlying C-2 zoning district.  

The plan, as presently constituted, calls for a combination of office, retail, mini-
warehousing and a proposed outparcel for a restaurant or drive-thru restaurant. 

Action Requested: 

Due to new regulations placed upon public hearings held during remote meetings, a 
governing board must also allow public comment to occur an additional 24 hours after the 
public hearing. Therefore, action is not eligible at this time. Town Council may take action 
at a later meeting or recess the current meeting long enough to comply with the new 24 
hour requirement for public comment after the public hearing. 

19



The Town of 
Weaverville

N O R T H   C A R O L I N A 

March 10, 2020 

Mayor Al Root and 
Weaverville Town Council 

 Re: Garrison Branch Acquisitions LLC 
Conditional Zoning District Application for 10 and 30 Garrison Branch Road 
Garrison Reserve Project – Multi-Tenant Commercial Development 
Statement of Consistency/Reasonableness and Recommendation 

Dear Mayor and Council –  

On March 5, 2020, pursuant to Section 36-84 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances, the Planning and 
Zoning Board reviewed the application for a Conditional Zoning District that was submitted by Garrison 
Branch Acquisitions LLC, on February 10, 2020. 

This project consists of a multi-tenant commercial development consisting of three (3) buildings 
housing a mix of retail, warehouse, and office spaces for a total of approximately 70,000 square feet, 
and an outparcel for future development. The property is under single ownership, is located near the 
southwest corner of the intersection of Monticello Road and US 25/70, and is currently zoned C-2.  

C-2 zoning regulations require that any multi-tenant development exceeding 25,000 square feet be
approved through a conditional zoning district. At the meeting on March 5, 2020, the Planning and
Zoning Board reviewed the project for compliance with all of the items enumerated in Section 36-84(d)
and, specifically, the Comprehensive Land Use Plan.

The Planning and Zoning Board found that the project is consistent with the Town’s Comprehensive 
Land Use Plan in that it is consistent with the future land use map which identifies the property as 
being within the mixed use area of Monticello Road and is also consistent with the use and 
dimensional requirements of the Town’s underlying C-2 zoning district which was designed and 
implemented specifically to accommodate commercial uses such as the ones proposed. With the 
conditions recommended below, the project can co-exist with the multifamily residential 
development that is occurring in the area and is, therefore, reasonable in light of the Town’s 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan and other land use policies.  

After careful review of this application and the materials submitted, the Planning and Zoning Board 
unanimously recommends the approval of the application for a Conditional Zoning District for the 
project as reflected on the attached plans and elevations, subject to the following proposed 
conditions: 

20



2 

1. The project is to be constructed in substantial compliance with the following plans
submitted by the applicant, copies of which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by
reference:

i. Master plan – Sheet C200
ii. Site plan – Sheet C201

iii. Grading, erosion control and storm drainage plan – C301
iv. Utility plan – Sheet C601
v. Building elevations – Sheets A201, A202

vi. Building elevation renderings

2. The height of buildings constructed on the site may not exceed the height as indicated on
the plans and elevations identified above.

3. The exterior of the buildings must be substantially similar to the building elevations
attached hereto and incorporated herein with the following construction materials: metal
panels and fiber cement siding.

4. Sidewalks are required along all portions of the property, including the outparcel, which
front Garrison Branch Road to provide access to the apartment complex that is under
construction on the property adjoining to the west.

5. All driveways/streets within the project shall be private. Said private driveways/streets shall
be constructed in such a way as to allow reasonable access for the anticipated traffic of the
multi-tenant development proposed and for ease of emergency access, including full
compliance with the North Carolina Fire Prevention Code. A driveway permit for the
entrance onto Garrison Branch Road must be secured from the North Carolina Department
of Transportation.

6. A minimum of 159 off-street parking spaces, with a minimum size of 9 feet by 18 feet, must
be provided and must be constructed and maintain in an all-weather condition.

7. The warehousing that is proposed is for mini-warehouses, as that term is defined by Code
Section 36-5, and is limited to interior storage in Building C only. Warehousing with exterior
storage of any kind is expressly prohibited.

8. One freestanding sign at the entrance of the project is allowed as long as it complies with
the standards contained in Article VIII of Chapter 36 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances.

9. Any and all outdoor lighting that is to be installed must comply with Town Code Section 36-
26, except as specifically provided in this paragraph. All outdoor lighting on the property
shall be mounted on posts that are no more than 16 feet tall. Blocking, shielding and aiming
of all outdoor lighting shall be used to minimize light trespass on to adjoining residential

21



3 

properties.  The outdoor lighting plan must be submitted and approved in conjunction with 
a zoning permit application. 

10. Landscape buffers between the property and adjoining properties are required.
Landscaping must comply with Article VI of Chapter 36 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances. A
landscaping plan must be submitted and approved in conjunction with a zoning permit
application.

11. Grading, sedimentation and erosion control, and storm drainage plans must be reviewed
and permitted by Buncombe County.

12. Construction related vehicles must be parked on the property and not on the public streets
or the shoulders of those public streets. All dirt, mud, construction materials, or other
debris deposited on the public streets as a result of construction activities must be removed
by the contractor or owner on a daily basis, pursuant to Code Section 22-48.

13. Code Section 36-84 shall continue to govern the project including, but not limited, to those
provisions regarding issuance of zoning permits, modifications, appeals, and final plat
approval.

Representatives of Garrison Branch Acquisitions LLC were at the Planning and Zoning Board meeting on 
March 5th and seemed to indicate their agreement to these conditions.  

A traffic analysis was not conducted as Town staff determined that the peak hour trips would not 
trigger the requirement stated in Town Code Section 36-25.    

It is noted that a public involvement meeting required by Sec. 36-84(e)(3) has been scheduled for April 
7, 2020, which will allow for the public hearing to be held on April 27, 2020, and action by Town 
Council to be taken thereafter.  

Please let me know if you need anything further from the Board on this matter.

Sincerely, 

Gary Burge 
Planning and Zoning Board Chairman 

cc: James Eller, Town Planner 
Selena Coffey, Town Manager 
Jennifer Jackson, Town Attorney 
Garrison Branch Acquisitions, LLC 

Gary Burge

22



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 
Staff Report: Proposed Conditional 
Zoning District for Garrison Reserve  

Prepared February, 2020

Sources:  Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Town of Weaverville Water and Street Standards; North 
Carolina Fire Prevention Code 

Page 1 of 1 

Introduction to the Property 

The subject parcel(s), commonly known as Garrison Reserve, consists of 4.89 acres as shown on 
Buncombe County tax records and the conditional zoning district proposal seeks to create 
approximately 70,000 square feet of commercial space to be used for a combination of 
warehousing, retail and office purposes. The property may be found on the western corner of the 
intersection of 25/70 and Monticello Road. 

Question of Jurisdiction 

Section 36-84 tasks the Planning and Zoning Board to conduct a review and recommendation to 
Town Council on the proposed conditional zoning district and its compliance, or lack thereof, 
with the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan or other applicable and adopted plans. An initial 
consideration requisite of Town Council was conducted on the night of Monday, February 24. 
Comments made ranged from “sprawl with too much parking” to an “improvement over existing 
or previous conditions” and “suitable to the needs of those in the vicinity.”  

Sec. 36-105. - Table of Uses 
USES  R-1 R-2 R-3 R-12 C-1 C-2 I-1

RETAIL / RESTAURANTS  

Multi-tenant Development (25,000 sq. ft. or more)  - -  -  -  C  C  C 

Technical Review Committee Review and Comment 

On February 12, 2020 the Technical Review Committee consisting of Planning Director James 
Eller, Public Works Director Dale Pennell and Fire Marshal Kile Davis convened to review the 
proposed project. A TRC report, a copy of which is attached hereto, was created as a result of 
this review which proposed 1change to the plans submitted. The project engineer has since made 
the requested revision. 

23



Page 1 of 1 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE 

REPORT 
Project:  Conditional Zoning District Plans and Application – Garrison Reserve
Date:  February 12, 2020 
Location: Conference Room, Town Hall
Staff:  Planning Director, James Eller; Public Works Director, Dale Pennell; Fire Marshal Kile 

Davis. 
Dept: Comment: Sheet #: 

All Using the FFE listed on plans provided by CDC for 
buildings A and C (2140 for both), and heights shown for 
the same buildings on multiple pages there appears to be 
a problem with the scale of building C in particular on 
plans provided by Sitework Studios. In short, a three story 
building is being shown as being shorter than a two story 
building. Please revise.    

CDC: C200 + all FFE 
shown/ 
Sitework: Sections A and 
B; Sections C and D 

PW, FD Water and sewer availability relies entirely on lines 
currently under construction for the neighboring 
apartment complex. No action required. 

C601

PLN Please confirm that a storage building the size of building 
C, does not require any water service as shown. 

C601

24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



 

 
Page 1 of 4  April 27, 2020  
  Town Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

                       

                        MINUTES 
Town of Weaverville    Town Council Regular Meeting 
State of North Carolina Monday, April 27, 2020 

Remote Electronic Meeting 
Zoom: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84711190168 
Meeting ID: 847 1119 0168 
 
The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for its regularly monthly meeting on Monday, April 27, 2020, at  
7:00 p.m. in Council Chambers within Weaverville Town Hall at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, North Carolina and 
as an electronic video meeting via Zoom Meeting. Access to the meeting began at 6:50 p.m. and the meeting will start at 
7:00 p.m. 
 
Councilmembers present were: Mayor Al Root, Vice Mayor Doug Jackson, and Councilmember Andrew Nagle. 
Councilmembers Dottie Sherrill, Jeffrey McKenna, and Patrick Fitzsimmons were present remotely.  
 
Staff present was: Town Manager Selena Coffey and Town Planner James Eller. Staff remotely present was: Town 
Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Town Clerk Derek Huninghake, Finance Officer Tonya Dozier, Police Chief Ron Davis, Fire 
Chief Ted Williams, Public Works Director Dale Pennell, and Water Treatment Supervisor Trent Duncan. 
 
1. Call to Order 

Mayor Al Root called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 

2. Approval/Adjustments to the Agenda 
Councilmember Nagle made a motion to approve the agenda as presented. Councilmember McKenna seconded and 
all voted in favor of the motion. 
 

3. Approval of Minutes 
Mayor Root suggested a minor change to the January 27, 2020 Town Council Meeting minutes. Councilmember 
Nagle made the motion to approve the minutes from the January 27, 2020 Town Council Meeting as revised, and the 
minutes from February 24, 2020 Special Called Meeting, February 24, 2020 Town Council meeting, March 10, 2020 
Town Council Joint Meeting with Planning and Zoning, and April 14, 2020 Town Council Workshop as presented. 
Vice Mayor Jackson seconded the motion and all voted in favor on the approval of the minutes. 
 

4. General Public Comment  
No Public Comment 
  

5. Consent Agenda 
Mayor Root moved Consent Agenda item I, July 4 Downtown Celebration Road Closure Ordinance, down to the first 
discussion and action item. Vice Mayor Jackson moved for the approval of the revised Consent Agenda. 
Councilmember Nagle seconded the motion and all voted unanimously to approve all action requested in the Consent 
Agenda.  

38

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84711190168


 

 
Page 2 of 4  April 27, 2020  
  Town Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

 
A. Monthly Tax Report – Information Only  
B. Tax Releases & Refunds– Approved the tax release of personal property of David Foster at 212 North Main 

Street with PIN P3025190,  valued at $3,588,  so that $13.63 can be released from the 2018  levy and the tax 
release of personal property of Robert and Martha Hoyle at 68 Highland Street with PIN P753263, valued at 
$22,057, so that $87.44 can be released from the 2018 levy and refunded.  

C. Resolution Approving Donation of Surplus Personal Property -Used Fire Hoses – Approved Resolution 
Declaring Used Fire Hoses and Supply Lines Surplus Personal Property and Approving Donation Pursuant to 
G.S. §160A-280 

D. Approval of Preliminary Plat for Major Subdivision – Greenwood Park – Approved Preliminary Plat for 
Greenwood Park Major Subdivision 

E. Annual Presentation of Town Manager Delegated Policies – Information Only 
F. Minor Amendments to Personnel Policy- Adopted Resolution Amendment to the Town’s Personnel Policy 
G. Ratification of Earth Day & Census Day Proclamations – Ratified the Attached Proclamations for Census Day 

and Earth Day 
H. Revised Arbor Day Proclamation – Revised and Approved Arbor Day 2020 Proclamation for October 15, 2020 
I. Budget Amendment: Police Department – Approved Budget Amendment 

 
6. Town Manager’s Report 

Town Manager Coffey presented her Manager’s report to Council including 1) that her proposed budget will be 
presented to Town Council at the May 12 workshop. She noted that the budget process will be very difficult this year 
since we won’t have a full grasp on the pandemic’s impact on our revenue, 2) the fountain in front of Town Hall is 
almost complete. Public Works is waiting for the final slate to arrive for the top of the fountain walls, 3) Community 
Center construction has continued with contractors doing their grading work and digging and pouring footings, 4)  the 
Weaverville Small-Town-Strong Initiative survey is going well and has had 30 business owners responses so far, and 
5) as the May1 deadline comes near, we have received a number of applications to transfer private streets to the public 
system including Creekside Village, Fox’s Lair, several small sections of Weaver Village Way, Reems Creek Village, 
and Reems Creek Villas. Town Manger Coffey thanked Public Works Director Dale Pennell for working hard to 
receive a grant of $30,000 for blue recycling trash carts and is working on another grant to supplement this for 
$13,000. She also gave an update on the COVID-19 statistics in Buncombe County stating that the County has 54 
cases and 4 deaths.  
 

7. Discussion and Action Items 
A. July 4 Downtown Celebration Road Closure Ordinance 
Mayor Root noted that even though it seemed problematic, he had left the road closure ordinance related to the July 
4th Downtown Celebration on the agenda. With the Governor’s new plan on how we can work our way out of the 
pandemic, even the optimistic version, the size of the gathering would not be allowed for our July 4 event. At this 
point the Mayor doesn’t see how we will be able to go forward with a July 4th celebration.  
 
Vice Mayor Jackson wondered since we had to sign a contract for fireworks and music if we would be relieved of the 
commitment. Town Manager Coffey mentioned that is the goal, but the contract says no. She will be working with 
Pyrotecnico to see if they can come up with an alternative arrangement under the circumstances or if we can apply the 
funds to next year.  Councilmember Nagle noted that if we aren’t going to get our funds back then maybe we can take 
the fireworks and use them at a different time like Labor Day or the grand opening of the community center. 
 
Mayor Root noted that there was consensus from Town Council that we will not be holding a July 4th celebration this 
year and asked the Town Manager Coffey to take the next steps in that regard.  
 
B. Downtown Parking Update & Amendment to Code Chapter 28 
Town Manager Coffey let Town Council know that the Public Works Department has installed the two-hour parking 
signage and the Weaverville Police Department has their new citation book, so the Town is ready to proceed with 

39



 

 
Page 3 of 4  April 27, 2020  
  Town Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

parking enforcement. She noted that they will be sensitive to the fact that the Town will be reopening the economy 
from the COVID 19 situation just as the timed parking requirements are going into effect.  
 
Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson highlighted the revisions that were brought up at the January meeting. The revisions 
include using revenues from the violations to support the Town’s parks and facilities, updating the operation of 
bicycles to abide by state law, specific operations on the sidewalks on Main Street between Brown street and 
Hamburg Mountain Road, and updated prohibited parking in certain places. She noted this is a police power 
ordinance so there is no public hearing requirement and the Planning and Zoning Board will be considering a few 
correlated issues related to parking and traffic.  
 
Vice Mayor Jackson made a motion to adopt the Ordinance Repealing and Replacing Town Code Chapter 28 
Concerning Traffic and Parking. Councilmember Fitzsimmons seconded the motion. The motion passed by a majority 
vote of Council. Motion carries 4-1. Councilmember Nagle voted nay.  
 
C. ADA Transition Plan 
Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson mentioned that she and Town Manager Coffey have been working on the Town’s 
compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and the goal is for the ADA Transition Plan to be present at the 
June Town Council meeting. They recommend that Town Council adopt amendments to the Town’s ADA 
Compliance Policy and Town’s Grievance Policy and Procedures to clearly set out these policies and provide 
procedures to address issues that arise. The Town is required to receive public input from its citizens in order to 
discover any concerns on accessibility to Town programs and facilities. Staff plans to conduct a public comment 
period during the month of May and to host one or more public input sessions in order to receive comments on 
problem areas and allow adequate investigation of any issues that might be brought to the Town’s attention.  
 
Councilmember Nagle believes that the Town should be consistent and go above and beyond to make sure that we 
accommodate employees and citizens with disabilities, not just for undue hardship. Town Manager Coffey noted that 
we must implement this plan, so we might have some difficult issues regarding funding in this process.  
 
Councilmember Nagle made a motion to adopt the Proposed Resolution Concerning the ADA Compliance Policy and 
the Grievance Policy and Procedures. Councilmember Sherrill seconded the motion. The motion passed by a majority 
vote of Council. Motion carries 5-0.  
 
D. Civil Rights – Title VI Implementation Plan 
Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson noted that Title VI of the Civil Rights Act specifically applies to local governments 
and the federal government is looking more closely at what cities and towns are doing to protect civil rights of its 
citizens from discrimination and to provide a clear way for a citizen to have complaints heard and resolved. Town 
Manager Coffey and her recommend that Town Council adopt the proposed Title VI Implementation Plan and the 
Title VI Civil Rights Compliance Policy. Town Attorney Jackson will be the Title VI Implementation Plan and 
Program Coordinator and would provide the training, public information, and any recommendations that need to be 
looked at by Town Manager Coffey.  
 
Councilmember Nagle made a motion to adopt the Proposed Resolution Adopting the Title VI Implementation Plan 
and the Title VI Civil Rights Compliance Policy. Vice Mayor Jackson seconded the motion. The motion passed by a 
majority vote of Council. Motion carries 5-0.  
 
E. Set Public Hearings: 

Mayor Root noted that the package shows the public hearings would be held on May 25, 2020, but he imagines 
that it is a clerical error due to Memorial Day, and that they would be held on May 18, 2020 at 6:30pm. 
 
 
 

40



 

 
Page 4 of 4  April 27, 2020  
  Town Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

1. Code Amendments to Chapters 25 & 36 on Streets, Parking, and Notices 
Town Planner James Eller noted that the first public hearing is for a set of proposed text amendments 
regarding streets, traffic, and parking, which would ensure code consistency throughout the code.  
 

2. Code Amendments to Chapter 36 on Mixed Use Development 
 
Town Planner James Eller mentioned that before them is a proposed text amendment to achieve the stated 
goals of the comprehensive land use plan that would better accommodate mixed use developments and 
transition districts in R-12, C-1 and C-2 zoning districts. Planning and Zoning Board has review text 
amendments and offered a unanimous positive recommendation.  
 

3. Conditional Zoning District for Garrison Reserve 
Town Planner James Eller mentioned that staff is possession of a Conditional Zoning District application for 
properties commonly known as 10 and 30 Garrison Branch Road. The application calls for the establishment 
of a multi-tenant development of 25,000 square feet or more. Planning and Zoning Board has the application 
and offered a unanimous positive recommendation. 

 
Councilmember Nagle made a motion to approve setting a Public Hearing for the Proposed Text Amendments 
Related to Parking, Streets, and Mandated Notices for the Zoning Board of Adjustment, a Public Hearing on 
Proposed Text Amendments to Permit Mixed Use Structures with Standards in the C-1, C-2 and R-12 Zoning 
Districts, and a Public Hearing on a Proposed Conditional Zoning District on the Property Commonly Known as 
Garrison Reserve at 10 and 30 Garrison Brand Road all on May 18, 2020 at 6:30 pm. Councilmember Sherrill 
seconded the motion. The motion passed by a majority vote of Council. Motion carries 5-0.  

 
4. Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Proposed Budget 

Town Manager Selena Coffey mentioned that in accordance with North Carolina’s Local Government Budget and 
Fiscal Control Act, G.S. § 159-12(b), Town Council must hold a public hearing.  
 
Councilmember Nagle made a motion to schedule the Public Hearing on the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 budget for 
Tuesday, June 9, 2020 at 6:00 pm. Vice Mayor Jackson seconded the motion. The motion passed by a majority vote of 
Council. Motion carries 5-0. 
 
F. Quarterly Report: Planning and Code Enforcement  
Town Planner James Eller presented the Planning Department Quarterly Report from January – March 2020 and 
noted that 39 Zoning Permits were issued. Mr. Eller also gave a review of the Planning and Zoning Board and the 
Zoning Board of Adjustment activity during these months.  
 
G. Quarterly Report: Public Works & Water Department (from March) 
Public Works Director Dale Pennell presented the Public Works and Water Services Quarterly Report for November 
2019 through February 2020. Some highlights were that the monthly unaccounted water decreased to 2.9%, since they 
were able to find and fix leaks and the Town’s water commitments for future developments has increased, due to the 
project on Garrison and Monticello Road. Mr. Pennell also noted that the total tons brought to the landfill has 
continued to stay up since Christmas and he imagines it will be double the amount on his next quarterly report.    
 

8. Adjournment 
Councilmember Nagle made the motion to adjourn; Councilmember McKenna seconded and all voted to adjourn the 
Council’s meeting at 8:20 p.m. 
 
 

__________________________________________ 
Derek K. Huninghake, Town Clerk 

41



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  May 18, 2020   

SUBJECT: Monthly Tax Report 

PRESENTER:  Tax Collector 

ATTACHMENTS: Monthly Tax Report 
  
 
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

The Town Tax Collector provides the following monthly tax report as of                 
May 11, 2020. This report is provided for information only.  

No action is requested or required. 

 

 

 

  

42



5/11/2020
Real Property: 783,958,380$        
Real Property Discoveries: 1,122,100               

Total Real Property:  785,080,480$        
Personal: 73,730,921             
Personal Discoveries: 229,087                  

Total Personal: 73,960,008             
Public Utilities: 5,406,640               
Exemption: (9,473,150)              
Releases: (2,792,494)              
Total Tax Value 852,181,484$        

Tax Levy @.38 cents per $100
Real Property: 2,983,306               
Personal Property: 281,048                  
Public Utilities: 20,545$                  
Less Under $5 Adjustment (47)                           
Total Public Utilities: 20,498                     
Exemption: (35,998)                   
Releases: (10,611)                   
Total Levy (Total Billed) 3,238,243$             

Total Current Year Collections 3,164,292$             
% Collected 97.72%

Total Left to be Collected: 73,951$                  

Prior Years Paid 4,560$                    

Town of Weaverville
MONTHLY TAX REPORT

FY 2019-20

43



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

Date of Meeting:  Monday, May 18, 2020 

Subject: Greenwood Park Final Plat, Phase One 

Presenter:   Planning Director 

Attachments: Recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Board; 
Greenwood Park Final Plat Phase One; TRC Report; Sec. 25-
83(e)(1) Improvements Guarantee; Sewer Line Construction 
Estimate  

Description: 

On Tuesday, May 5, 2020 the Planning and Zoning Board reviewed the attached final plat as 
required by ordinance and passed along a unanimous recommendation that said plat be 
approved by Town Council contingent upon Town Council securing an improvement 
guarantee for sewer line construction as per Section 25-83(e)(1). 

 

Action Requested: 

Staff is requesting the approval of the aforementioned final plat with the requisite 
improvement guarantee and has found in conjunction with the Planning and Zoning 
Board and the TRC that the proposed subdivision is compliant with the ordinances of 
the Town. 

Staff is requesting the improvement guarantee amount to be set at $208,606.88. This 
value represents an amount equal to 125 percent of the cost of construction of the 
sewer line based upon the construction estimate furnished.   

 

44



 

Town of Weaverville 
Planning and Zoning Board 

 
 

On Tuesday, May 05, 2020 the Planning and Zoning Board reviewed and unanimously recommended 
to Town Council the attached major subdivision final plat for Greenwood Park phase one. Said 
recommendation is contingent upon Town Council securing an improvement guarantee for a sewer 
line which has yet to be constructed as per the conditions set forth in Section 25-83(e)(1) 
Improvements Guarantee.  
 
It has been found that the proposed major subdivision would not conflict with the Town’s 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan or Subdivision and Zoning Ordinances. The Planning and Zoning Board 
Considers approval both reasonable and in the public interest due to the Town’s technical review 
committee finding of compliance with municipal ordinance and relevant state and federal laws, rules 
and regulations. 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 

Gary Burge 
Chairman, Planning and Zoning Board  
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

45



46



Page 1 of 1 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE 

REPORT II 
Project:  Major Subdivision Final Plat – Greenwood Park Phase 1
Date:  Thursday, April 23, 2020; 1:30pm 
Location: Conference Room, Town Hall 
Staff:  Planning Director, James Eller; Public Works Director, Dale Pennell; Fire Marshal Kile 

Davis. 
Dept: Comment: Sheet #: 

PLN Change title of subdivision to Greenwood Park phase 1 reflective of new 
preliminary plat approval by Town Council on April 27. 

Final Plat 

FD Easement for a temporary turnaround show on lot 117 may only be 
released upon the completion of a new turnaround 

Final Plat 

* Commented items were addressed in an amended final plat submitted to staff.

47



Sec. 25-83. - Plat requirements for major subdivisions.   

(e)  (1)  Improvements guarantee.  

(A)  Unless the construction of all improvements required by this chapter have been totally 
completed prior to the approval by the town council of a final plat and the recording of the 
same, the town shall, for the purpose of approving a final plat prior to the completion of 
construction, require an agreement to complete and a guarantee from the subdivider that 
construction of required or contemplated improvements will be completed according to the 
approved specifications of the town at the subdivided expense. Such guarantee may be in 
the form of: (i) an assignment by the subdivider to the town of a certificate of deposit at a 
federally insured financial institution; (ii) an official bank check of a federally insured 
financial institution drawn in favor of the town and deposited with the town clerk; or (iii) 
cash deposited with the town clerk; or (iv) an irrevocable letter of credit drawn on a 
federally insured financial institution. Such guarantee shall be in an amount equal to 125 
percent of the cost of the construction of the required or contemplated improvements as 
estimated by the subdivider or his contractors and approved, as to the amount, by the town 
council. The town manager may allow up to 180 days from the date of the town council 
approval of the final plat for the subdivider to post the necessary performance guarantee in 
addition to all other necessary documents. If prior to the expiration of the 180 days, the 
developer requests a further extension, the town manager may, at his or her discretion, 
grant an additional 180 days to complete utilities and paving. If all documents and 
guarantees are not received by the town manager within the 180-day period, the town 
council's approval of the final plat shall become null and void. All guarantees shall be 
reviewed by the town attorney and shall be subject to town council approval. Performance 
guarantees shall be kept by the town until the town council determines that all public and 
private improvements as required by this chapter have been constructed in accordance 
with the approved plans except as provided below. 

  

48



49



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

Date of Meeting:  May 18, 2020  

Subject:   Approval of FY 2019-2020 Audit Contract   

Presenter:   Town Finance Director 

Attachments: Audit Contract with Gould Killian CPA Group 
 

Description: 

Attached you will find the engagement letter and contract between the Town of 
Weaverville and Gould Killian CPA Group for the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Audit.   A Request 
for Proposal for audit services was conducted in the spring of 2018, and Gould Killian was 
selected at that point.  Accordingly, this is the third year of the three-year audit contract for 
this auditing firm.  You will find that the total fee of $22,400 is only a $250 increase from 
the prior year. This $22,400 includes $18,150 for the audit and $4,250 for the completion 
of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.  This contract must be executed by the 
Town in order for the auditor to provide same to the Local Government Commission (LGC).  

 

 

Council Action Requested: 

The Town Manager recommends approval of this contract and direction to execute the 
document and forward same to Gould Killian CPA Group.  The following is suggested as a 
motion to approve this contract: 

I move that the attached audit contract with Gould Killian CPA Group be approved and 
that the Mayor and Town staff be authorized to execute the same. 

50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  May 18, 2020 

SUBJECT: Amendments to FY 2019-2020 Fee Schedule 

PRESENTER:   Town Manager 

ATTACHMENTS: None 
  
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

The Town Manager recommends the following additions to the current fee schedule: 

Public Street Commitment Application Fee:  $200 

Parking Violation Fees:  Handicapped Zone –  $100 
    Fire Lane - $100 
    Obstructing Traffic - $100 
    Within 25 Feet of Intersection - $50 
    In/Within 10 Feet of Crosswalk - $50 
    Within 25 Feet of Traffic Sign/Signal - $50 
    Blocking Private Driveway - $50 
    Double Parked - $50 
    Truck Traffic in Restricted Area - $50 
    Exceeding Time Limit - $30 
    Parked Across Lines - $30 
    Exceeding 12 Inches from Curb or Street Edge - $30 
    All Others Parking Violations - $30 

 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Council is asked to approve the recommended additions to the fee schedule. The following 
motion is proposed: 
 

I move that we approve the recommended additions to the fee schedule as presented with an 
immediate effective date. 

71



Town of Weaverville 

Town Council Agenda Item 

 

 

Date of Meeting:   Monday, May 18, 2020 

Subject:    Town Manager’s Monthly Report 

Presenter:    Town Manager  

Attachments:    Monthly Report  

 

Description:    

Attached please find this month’s Town Manager report. 
 

 

 

 

 

Action Requested:    

No action requested. 

72



 

Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 
 

Town Manager’s Monthly Report 

Selena D. Coffey, MPA, ICMA-CM 

 

 

May 2020 

 
1. Public Hearing on the FY 2020-2021 Budget:  As a reminder, the public hearing on the 

proposed budget is Tuesday, June 9 at 6pm. 
 

2. June Summer Series Event Cancellation: With the consent of Mayor Root and in continued 
efforts to keep our community safe, the June Summer Music Series event has been 
cancelled.  

 
3. Citizens Academy Session Cancellations:  Unfortunately, we have now had to cancel three 

of the Citizens Academy sessions due to public health concerns. I continue to consider each 
of these on a case-by-case basis. I am now considering conducting at least a few of these 
sessions via Zoom if our participants wish to do so. 

 
4. Bike-Ped Application:  We have started work on the Bike/Ped application and I have been in 

contact with Land of Sky Regional Council to give them a heads-up that we are applying. I 
will be bringing a resolution of support to Town Council for approval in the near future. 

 
 

 

 

 
 

73



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting: 

Subject: 

Presenter:  

Attachments: 

Monday, May 18, 2020 

Public Street Commitment Applications 

Planning Director, Public Works Director 

Public Street Commitment Applications and Staff Reports for: 
Weaver Village Way -  Commercial – Aldi  (p. 75) 
Weaver Village Way – Commercial – Firehouse Subs, etc (p. 82) 
Weaver Village Way – Residential (p.  92) 
Fox Lair Crossing (p.  96) 
Reems Creek Villages (p.  104) 
Reems Creek Villas (p.  112) 
Creekside Village (p.  115) 

Description: 

The attached public street commitment applications were received by the Town prior to 
May 1st and are on Town Council’s agenda for discussion and possible action. A staff report 
is included for each request and includes a recommendation.  

Action Requested: 

Action on public street commitment applications can be taken at tonight’s meeting in 
Town Council’s discretion.  

74



75



76



77



78



79



80



Page 1 of 1 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE  

Public Street Commitment 
Application Report 

Date:  Wednesday, May 6, 2020 
Road(s): Weaver Village Way 
Location: Aldi
Staff:   Planning Director, James Eller; Public Works Director, Dale Pennell 
DEPARTMENT COMMENT
Both Based upon recorded plats furnished insufficient right-of-way exists for a 

public road. Forty five feet of right-of way is required and only 36 feet is 
shown. 

PW Originally intended to be private, public works did not inspect the road 
construction and cannot verify that the road was built to town standards. 

PLN The applicant owns the property approximately to the center line of Weaver 
Village Way. The town would need to obtain additional public street 
applications from neighboring properties and acquire additional right-of-way 
on both sides of the street. 

Both It has been a long standing policy of the town not to own and maintain roads, 
parking areas and any other common area within commercial developments.  

Recommendation: Based upon the aforementioned findings, staff recommends that this 
application be denied.  

81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



Page 1 of 1 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

Public Street Commitment 
Application Report 

Date: Wednesday, May 6, 2020 
Road(s): Weaver Village Way 
Location: 58 Weaver Village Way 
Staff:  Planning Director, James Eller; Public Works Director, Dale Pennell 
DEPARTMENT COMMENT 
Both Based upon recorded plats furnished insufficient right-of-way exists for a 

public road. Forty five feet of right-of way is required and only 36 feet is 
shown. 

PW Originally intended to be private, public works did not inspect the road 
construction and cannot verify that the road was built to town standards. 

PLN The applicant owns the property approximately to the center line of Weaver 
Village Way. The town would need to obtain additional public street 
applications from neighboring properties and acquire additional right-of-way 
on both sides of the street. 

Both It has been a long standing policy of the town not to own and maintain roads, 
parking areas and any other common area within commercial developments.  

Recommendation: Based upon the aforementioned findings, staff recommends that this 
application be denied.  

91



92



93



94



Page 1 of 1 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE  

Public Street Commitment 
Application Report 

Date:  Wednesday, May 6, 2020 
Road(s): Weaver Village Way 
Location: Weaver Village Residential 
Staff:  Planning Director, James Eller; Public Works Director, Dale Pennell 
DEPARTMENT COMMENT
Both Based upon recorded plats furnished insufficient right-of-way exists for a 

public road. Forty five feet of right-of way is required and only 36 feet is 
shown. 

PW Originally intended to be private, public works did not inspect the road 
construction and cannot verify that the road was built to town standards. 

PW Without obtaining the remainder of Weaver Village Way through the 
commercial portion of the development, the Town would own an island of 
municipal infrastructure only accessible through private road. 

Recommendation: Based upon the aforementioned findings, staff recommends that this 
application be denied.  

95



96



 
97



98



99



100



101



102



Page 1 of 1 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE  

Public Street Commitment 
Application Report 

Date:  Wednesday, May 6, 2020 
Road(s): Camsyn Drive, Carden Drive 
Location: Fox Lair 
Staff:  Planning Director, James Eller; Public Works Director, Dale Pennell 
DEPARTMENT COMMENT
PW Originally intended to be private, public works did not inspect the road 

construction and cannot verify that the road was built to town standards. 
PLN Approved within the Town’s subdivision review and approval process, 

sufficient right of way exists for a public road. 
PW A cursory inspection of the roads at surface level indicates many and several 

issues which need to be corrected. Efforts by public works staff to obtain the 
original road construction plans in order to assess the condition of 
construction have been unsuccessful.  

Recommendation: Based upon the aforementioned findings, staff recommends that this 
application be denied. 

103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



Page 1 of 1 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE  

Public Street Commitment 
Application Report 

Date:  Wednesday, May 6, 2020 
Road(s): Penley Park Drive, Al Dorf Drive, Compass Park Drive, Governor Thomson Terrace 
Location: Reems Creek Village 
Staff:  Planning Director, James Eller; Public Works Director, Dale Pennell 
DEPARTMENT COMMENT
Both Staff has obtained approximately 150 pages of documents related to a 

previous road commitment request from the properties and developer in 
question in 2007. At that time it was determined that many and several 
improvements would need to be made prior to the town’s consideration of 
ownership and maintenance of the roads. The property owner declined to 
undertake the improvements suggested by the town and 0n May 17, 2010 an 
attorney representing the property owner appeared before Town Council and 
indicated that the roads were to remain in private control. 

PW The town has no evidence that the improvements recommended with the 
previous commitment request were ever accomplished. While there has been 
no official survey of the condition of the roads since that time, it stands to 
reason that conditions have aged and may have gotten worse in the interim.   

PLN Approved within the Town’s subdivision review and approval process, 
sufficient right of way exists for a public road. 

Both The application calls for a present gate on Governor Thomson Terrace to 
remain and the portion of Governor Thomson Terrace leading to said gate to 
remain private. State Powell Bill requires that public roads be truly open and 
accessible to the general public. Roads claimed by the town on the Powell Bill 
inventory must meet this requirement and the takeover of this particular road 
will open the town to the possibility of a Powell Bill audit and possible 
forfeiture of state funds.  

Recommendation: Based upon the aforementioned findings, staff recommends that this 
application be denied. 

111



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
PUBLIC STREET COMMITMENT APPLICATION 

Public Street Commitment Application March 2020 

APPLICANT CONTACT 
INFORMATION 

NAME
ADDRESS  
PHONE  
EMAIL

APPLICANT TYPE    DEVELOPER / NAME: 
   HOA / NAME: 
   50% OF PROPERTY OWNERS [COMPLETE 2ND PAGE] 

DEVELOPER/APPLICANT SIGNATURE: DATE: 

HOA/APPLICANT SIGNATURE: DATE: 

SUBDIVISION NAME  
 

RECORDED PLAT     NO        YES  - BOOK:           PAGE: 
STREETS LOCATED IN TOWN LIMITS     NO       YES 
NAME OF LEGAL OWNER OF STREET(S)  
MATERIALS SUBMITTED 
WITH APPLICATION 

  Plat Showing Streets/Rights-of-Way
  Construction Specifications and Drawings (including cross-sections and details) 
  No Materials Submitted 

SIDEWALKS?     NO       YES 
STORM DRAINAGE?     NO       YES 

THE FOLLOWING STREETS ARE PROPOSED FOR ACCEPTANCE: 

STREET NAME:                                                           ENTIRE STREET         PORTION (DESCRIBE) 
FROM INTERSECTION OF _____________________________________ TO INTERSECTION OF _______________________________________    
LENGTH:                  FEET     MILES     NUMBER OF HOUSES/BUSINESSES: 
STREET NAME:      ENTIRE STREET         PORTION (DESCRIBE) 
FROM INTERSECTION OF _____________________________________ TO INTERSECTION OF _______________________________________    
LENGTH:                                FEET     MILES     NUMBER OF HOUSES/BUSINESSES: 
STREET NAME:      ENTIRE STREET         PORTION (DESCRIBE) 
FROM INTERSECTION OF _____________________________________ TO INTERSECTION OF _______________________________________    
LENGTH:                                FEET     MILES     NUMBER OF HOUSES/BUSINESSES: 
STREET NAME:      ENTIRE STREET         PORTION (DESCRIBE) 
FROM INTERSECTION OF _____________________________________ TO INTERSECTION OF _______________________________________    
LENGTH:                                FEET     MILES     NUMBER OF HOUSES/BUSINESSES: 
STREET NAME:      ENTIRE STREET         PORTION (DESCRIBE) 
FROM INTERSECTION OF _____________________________________ TO INTERSECTION OF _______________________________________    
LENGTH:                                FEET     MILES     NUMBER OF HOUSES/BUSINESSES: 
STREET NAME:      ENTIRE STREET         PORTION (DESCRIBE) 
FROM INTERSECTION OF _____________________________________ TO INTERSECTION OF _______________________________________    
LENGTH:                                FEET     MILES     NUMBER OF HOUSES/BUSINESSES: 

ONLY STREETS LOCATED WITHIN TOWN LIMITS CAN BE CONSIDERED.  

DECISIONS REGARDING THE ACCEPTANCE OF PRIVATE STREETS INTO THE TOWN’S PUBLIC STREET 
SYSTEM ARE MADE IN THE SOLE DISCRETION OF TOWN COUNCIL. ACCEPTANCE INTO THE STREET 
SYSTEM MAY BE SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS INCLUDING SUPPLEMENTAL TESTING AND INSPECTION TO 
DETERMINE WHETHER TOWN STREET CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS WERE COMPLIED WITH AND REPAIR 
WORK TO BRING STREETS UP TO TOWN PUBLIC STREET STANDARDS.  

Rabbit Ridge Drive X
11

X

X

860 X

X
X

X
Individual lots

Reems Creek Villas
X 16066

112



Public Street Commitment Application March 2020 

PROPERTY OWNER/APPLICANT SIGNATURE(S): 
[ATTACH ADDITIONAL PAGE(S) IF NECESSARY] 

NAME: 
ADDRESS: 
CONTACT PHONE/EMAIL: 

SIGNATURE: 
DATE: 

NAME: 
ADDRESS: 
CONTACT PHONE/EMAIL: 

SIGNATURE: 
DATE: 

NAME: 
ADDRESS: 
CONTACT PHONE/EMAIL: 

SIGNATURE: 
DATE: 

NAME: 
ADDRESS: 
CONTACT PHONE/EMAIL: 

SIGNATURE: 
DATE: 

NAME: 
ADDRESS: 
CONTACT PHONE/EMAIL: 

SIGNATURE: 
DATE: 

NAME: 
ADDRESS: 
CONTACT PHONE/EMAIL: 

SIGNATURE: 
DATE: 

NAME: 
ADDRESS: 
CONTACT PHONE/EMAIL: 

SIGNATURE: 
DATE: 

NAME: 
ADDRESS: 
CONTACT PHONE/EMAIL: 

SIGNATURE: 
DATE: 

NAME: 
ADDRESS: 
CONTACT PHONE/EMAIL: 

SIGNATURE: 
DATE: 

NAME: 
ADDRESS: 
CONTACT PHONE/EMAIL: 

SIGNATURE: 
DATE: 

OFFICIAL USE ONLY SIGNATURE OF TOWN MANAGER/ADMINISTRATOR DATE 
APPLICATION RECEIVED 
STAFF 
REVIEW/RECOMMENDATION 
TOWN COUNCIL ACTION   DENIED       APPROVED      WITH CONDITIONS  
COMMITMENT LETTER SENT 
CONDITIONS IMPOSED SEE COMMITMENT LETTER ATTACHED 
TESTING/INSPECTION COMPLETE DEADLINE: 
REPAIRS COMPLETE DEADLINE: 
STAFF 
REPORT/RECOMMENDATION 
STREET PLAT PREPARED 
WARRANTY PRESENTED 
TOWN COUNCIL ACTION ON 
ACCEPTANCE 
GUARANTY PROVIDED 
DEED EXECUTED/RECORDED 
ACCEPTANCE COMPLETE 

Margaret M Smith
23 Rabbit Ridge Drive Weaverville 28787

8282730633 04/12/2020

Raymond E Mann
42 Rabbit Ridge Dr

8283809832 04/12/2020

Michael Sitzer
38 Rabbit Ridge Drive, Weaverville 28787

828-774-2662 04/12/2020

Thomas F Craggs
34 Rabbit Ridge Dr.

828-484-9340/tomcraggs@mac.com 04/12/2020

Michael Goodman
9 Rabbit Ridge Drive

8286451543 04/12/2020

Martha Langer
41 Rabbit Ridge Dr

m.l.f.l.2132@gmail.com 612-834-2132 04/13/2020

Aaron M McNutt
37 Rabbit Ridge Dr., Weaverville North Carolina, 28787

Aaronmcnu@gmail.com 04/14/2020

James Hobson
19 Rabbit Ridge Dr, 

jrh9137@gmail.com 04/14/2020

113



Page 1 of 1 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

Public Street Commitment 
Application Report 

Date: Wednesday, May 6, 2020 
Road(s): Rabbit Ridge Drive 
Location: Reems Creek Villas 
Staff:  Planning Director, James Eller; Public Works Director, Dale Pennell 
DEPARTMENT COMMENT 
PW Originally intended to be private, public works did not inspect the road 

construction and cannot verify that the road was built to town standards. 
PW Based upon the age of the roads, it is plausible that they may rise to the top of 

the improvement schedule immediately upon acceptance. A cursory inspection 
of the roads at surface level indicates many and several issues which need to 
be corrected. 

PLN Approved within the Town’s subdivision review and approval process, 
sufficient right of way exists for a public road. 

PLN Access to neighboring lots within the subdivision is only achieved via a 20 foot 
private right-of-way. 

Recommendation: Based upon the aforementioned findings, staff recommends that this 
application be denied. 

114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



Page 1 of 1 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

Public Street Commitment 
Application Report 

Date: Wednesday, May 12, 2020 
Road(s): Athena Avenue, Barnette Shoals Drive, Duncannon Street, Loftin Street, Robin Roost 

Road, Sandstone Drive, Seneca Street 
Location: Creekside Village 
Staff:  Planning Director, James Eller; Public Works Director, Dale Pennell 
DEPARTMENT COMMENT 
Both With the application you will find the last correspondence between Town 

Manger Coffey and Stephen Mudge of Serrus Capital Partners the developer 
of Creekside Village. It is our understanding that the testing and corrections 
recommended by Public Works Director Pennell will not be undertaken. 

Recommendation: Based upon the aforementioned findings, staff recommends that this 
application be denied.  

136



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  May 18, 2020 

SUBJECT: Code Amendments – Chapter 24 - Streets 

PRESENTER:   Town Attorney 

ATTACHMENTS: Proposed Ordinance Amending Town Code Chapter 24 
Concerning Streets 

  
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

At its meeting on January 27, 2020, Town Council reviewed some proposed amendments to 
Town Code Chapter 24 concerning streets. The purpose of the amendments were to provide a 
policy and procedures for public streets within the Town’s public street system.  

The attached draft ordinance is consistent with Town Council’s action on January 27, 2020.  Staff 
will be at tonight’s meeting to answer any questions that Town Council may have on what is 
proposed.   

As these Code amendments will be enacted under the police power of the Town, and not land 
development authority, no public hearing is required prior to adoption. It should be noted that a 
public hearing is scheduled for 6:30 p.m. on May 18, 2020, for the related minor amendments 
that are proposed to the subdivision and zoning regulations in order to provide for consistency 
between Code regulations and to avoid any overlapping of regulations. Those Code amendments 
have received a unanimous Planning and Zoning Board recommendation and Town Council will 
be able to take action on those amendments any time after 6:30 p.m. on May 19th.   

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Council is asked to approve the amendments to Code Chapter 24 either as presented, or 
with such revisions as Town Council desires, through the adoption of an ordinance similar to the 
one attached. The following motion is proposed: 
 

I move that we adopt the Ordinance Amending Town Code Chapter 24 Concerning Streets. 

137



1 
 

ORDINANCE AMENDING WEAVERVILLE TOWN CODE  
CHAPTER 24 CONCERNING STREETS  

 
WHEREAS, Town Council of the Town of Weaverville wishes to exercise its 

authority under N.C. Gen. Stat. § 160A-296 in order to establish regulations and procedures 
concerning the Town’s public street system; and  

 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 24 of the Weaverville Town Code contains the Town’s 
regulation of streets and sidewalks and it is the desire of Town Council to amend that 
Chapter to add new regulations;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by Town Council of the Town of Weaverville, 
North Carolina, as follows: 

1. Chapter 24 of the Weaverville Town Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to add 
the following as Article V: 

CHAPTER 24 – STREETS AND SIDEWALKS 

ARTICLE V. – STREET STANDARDS AND ACCEPTANCE OF PRIVATE STREETS  AND RELATED 
INFRASTRUCTURE INTO PUBLIC STREET SYSTEM 

 

Sec. 24-81. – Public Street System – Town Council Discretion 

The Town of Weaverville maintains a public street system which includes streets and sidewalks that are 
publicly maintained and open for use by the public. The public street system also includes curbing and 
storm drainage systems that are connected or related to the streets.  

In its sole discretion the Weaverville town council has the authority and right to determine the location and 
extent of its public street system and which streets and related infrastructure are to be publicly maintained 
by the town. Nothing contained in this article should be construed as a limitation on the absolute 
discretion of town council with regard to the town’s street system. 

Regarding the town’s public street system, town council may consider, but is not limited to, the following 
factors:  

general operational needs of the town, general fiscal needs and financial standing of the town, 
town strategic plans, comprehensive land use plans, economic development, traffic patterns, 
traffic or transportation plans, interconnectivity to other public streets, location of street, length 
and width of street and right-of-way area, topography and slope, number and types of uses along 
the street, affordable housing considerations, standards of construction of street and related 
infrastructure, anticipated cost of maintenance and repairs to the street, cost of maintenance of 
the public street system as a whole, any other factor found by town council to be reasonable. 

 

Sec. 24-82. – All Streets are Private Unless Accepted into a Public Street System  

All streets are private unless accepted into a public street system. The notation of a “public street” on a 
recorded plat serves only as an offer of dedication for that street for public use. A developer/owner cannot 
obligate the town to take over a street. The approval of a plat shall not be deemed to constitute or affect 

138



2 
 

the acceptance of the town or by the public of the dedication of any street or related infrastructure shown 
on the plat. Streets remain private until the town (or other public road system such as North Carolina 
Department of Transportation) formally accepts the street into its public street system. 

 

Sec. 24-83. – Private Street Standards 

The minimum streets standards for all private residential streets constructed within the town are the 
standards set forth in the North Carolina Department of Transportation Subdivision Road Minimum 
Construction Standards, as the same shall from time to time be amended.  

Streets, including internal circulation streets within parking lots, serving multi-family residential, 
institutional, commercial and industrial uses and manufactured home parks, must be constructed in such 
a way as to allow reasonable access for the anticipated traffic associated with the specific use being 
served and for ease of emergency access.  

For all private streets constructed within the town, the requirements of the North Carolina Fire Prevention 
Code as adopted by the Town of Weaverville and as the same may from time to time be amended, 
applicable for the specific use of the property served, must be complied with.  

 

Sec. 24-84. – Public Street Standards  

In order for a new street to be eligible for acceptance into the town’s public street system, a street and its 
related infrastructure must be constructed in accordance with the town’s adopted public street standards, 
as the same may from time to time be amended. In addition, the requirements of the North Carolina Fire 
Prevention Code as adopted by the Town of Weaverville and as the same may from time to time be 
amended, applicable for the specific use of the property served, must be complied with.  

Site visits and observations by the public works department and town review of certain test results are 
required at the completion of certain critical phases of the street system construction including specifically 
the following:  

(a) On-site review of site clearing and grubbing prior to grading; 

(b) On-site review of grading and fill operations and review of compaction test results on all fill 
areas under the roadway; 

(c) On-site review of storm drainage system and review of compaction test results of the storm 
drainage trench; 

(d) Review of compaction test results for all utilities installed in the roadway;  

(e) On-site review of curb/curb and gutter, sidewalks, and drive entrances;  

(f) On-site review of proof-rolling of the sub-grade material;  

(g) On-site review of installation of the ABC stone base and review of compaction test results;  

(h) On-site review of proof-rolling of the stone base; and 

(i) On-site review of asphalt paving and review of compaction test results. 

The developer/owner must notify the public works department at each of the above phases in order to 
allow the Town’s public works department the opportunity to review the work. Failure on the part of the 
developer/owner to notify public works at each of these critical construction phases may disqualify a 

139



3 
 

street from eligibility for acceptance into the town’s public street system or may cause work to have to be 
uncovered and redone at the expense of the developer/owner.  

 

Sec. 24 - 85. – Streets Serving Multi-Family Residential, Institutional, Commercial and/or Industrial Uses 
or Manufactured Home Parks 

All streets, including internal circulation streets within parking lots, serving multi-family residential, 
institutional, commercial or industrial uses or manufactured home parks, will remain private unless, in 
town council’s discretion, such streets further a significant public interest.  

 

Sec. 24-86. – Developer/Owner Declaration Concerning Residential Streets 

Prior to development approval, developers/owners constructing new residential streets must declare 
whether they will be requesting that the new streets be accepted into the town’s public street system or 
are to remain private. Requests for acceptance into the public street system must follow the procedures 
for a public street commitment as set out in this article and such commitment must be decided prior to 
development approval.  

Residential streets that are declared to be private will not be observed by town representatives and will 
not be eligible for inclusion into the public street system.   

 

Sec. 24-87. – Public Street Commitment  

If a developer/owner wishes to have a street accepted into the town’s public street system then the 
developer/owner must request a public street commitment letter in accordance with this section. 

(a) Application for public street commitment – A developer/owner that desires a public street 
commitment shall submit such request in writing on such forms and in such detail as prescribed 
by the town manager. 

(b) Processing fee – At the time of requesting a public street commitment letter, the applicant shall 
pay to the town a nonrefundable processing fee in the amount set forth in the town’s adopted fee 
schedule. 

(c) Staff review and recommendation – Upon receipt of an application, town staff shall evaluate the 
request and make recommendations to town council, including any recommended conditions to 
be included in the commitment letter. 

(d) Town council action – Town council shall consider and take action to either decline acceptance or 
to issue a declaration of intent to accept streets upon condition that streets be constructed to 
Town standards with required periodic Town inspections, and/or other conditions as deemed 
necessary by town council. 

(e) Issuance of street commitment letter – Upon town council approval the town manager will issue a 
street commitment letter outlining the conditions imposed and requirements for town verification 
of compliance with conditions and requirements, and applicable time limits. The street 
commitment letter is transferable by the applicant, but is only valid for the original project and for 
streets and related infrastructure that are the same as or substantially similar to what was 
originally proposed.  

(f) Expiration, termination, and revocation of public street commitment letter –  

140



4 
 

(1) A public street commitment is valid for one (1) year from its issuance but, upon request, 
may be extended for an additional one (1) year period by the town manager upon a 
showing of good reason for the delay.  

(2) Once construction of a street has begun the developer/owner must use reasonably 
diligent efforts to complete the construction of the street in a reasonable time. If more 
than one (1) year elapses from the commencement of construction without any work 
being done on the street, then the street shall be deemed abandoned and the 
commitment letter shall terminate.  

(3) If a developer/owner fails to call for on-site observation of critical construction phases by 
town representatives or conduct the required testing, or if town standards have not been 
met, then the public works director shall report such information to town council and the 
public street commitment letter is subject to revocation by town council. 

(4) The developer/owner will be given an opportunity to be heard by town council concerning 
termination or revocation of the public street commitment letter. 

 

Sec. 24-88. – Existing Private Streets  

Owners of existing private streets were provided an opportunity to request a public street commitment 
from January 27, 2020, through May 1, 2020. Unless a public street commitment application is in process 
prior to May 1, 2020, private streets are not eligible for acceptance into the town’s street system. 

 

Sec. 24-89. – Report and Recommendation of Public Works Director 

Prior to town council’s acceptance of any street and related infrastructure into the public street system, 
the public work’s director shall submit a report and recommendation for town council’s consideration. The 
report should address the developer/owner’s compliance with any conditions or requirements stated in 
the public street commitment letter. The report should also include a recommendation as to the amount of 
a reasonable repair guaranty.   

 

Sec. 24-90. – Warranty and Repair Guaranty.  

As a condition of acceptance into the public street system, all streets and related infrastructure shall be 
warranted by the person, corporation or company making the improvements for a period of two (2) years 
from the date of final approval which warranty shall be in writing and include an indemnification clause, 
agreeing to indemnify and hold the town harmless from any such claims during the two-year warranty 
period. As a condition of acceptance into the public street system, the developer/owner shall be required 
to submit a repair guaranty in a reasonable amount set by town council for three (3) years following the 
warranty period.   

 

 

Sec. 24-91. – Street Right-of-Way Plat.  

Once the street and related infrastructure, or any required repair work, are completed and approved by 
the public works department, developer/owner shall provide to the public works department a proposed 
recordable plat showing the as-built streets and related infrastructure and the right-of-way to be 
conveyed. 

141



5 
 

The public works director, planning director, and town attorney are to review the proposed plat to 
determine its adequacy and provide recommendations as they deem appropriate to town council. 

 

Sec. 24-92. – Formal Acceptance of Street and Related Infrastructure.  

Once the street and all related infrastructure have been completed, the right-of-way plat has been 
prepared and approved by the public work’s director, planning director, and town attorney, and the public 
work’s director has prepared and submitted his/her report and recommendation, or at any other time 
requested by the developer/owner, the town manager will put the request for acceptance on the next 
available town council regular meeting agenda so that town council can consider the request.  

Town council will be asked to consider acceptance of the street and related infrastructure into the Town’s 
public street system.  

 

 

Sec. 24-93. – Post Acceptance Recordation.  

If accepted and approved by town council, developer/owner must, at its expense, record the approved 
plat and convey the right-of-way by deed to the town in a form approved by the town attorney.  

 

Sec. 24-94. – Limitation of Town Representative Responsibility.  

Participation of town representatives in any on-site review or observation is for town purposes only and 
should not be relied upon by the developer/owner for engineering inspection and certification purposes.  

 

Sec. 24-95. – Appeal of Administrative Decisions 

Any administrative decision concerning the public street system is appealable to town council. Such an 
appeal must be submitted in writing to the town clerk within 30 days of the administrative decision and the 
writing must include the reasons for or basis of the appeal.   

_________________ 
 

2. It is the intention of Town Council that the sections and paragraphs of this Ordinance 
are severable and if any section or paragraph of this Ordinance shall be declared 
unconstitutional or otherwise invalid by the valid judgment or decree of any court of 
competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality or invalidity shall not affect any of 
the remaining paragraphs or sections of this Ordinance, since they would have been 
enacted by Town Council without the incorporation in this Ordinance of any such 
unconstitutional or invalid section or paragraph. 

3. These amendments shall be effective immediately upon adoption and immediately 
codified. 

  

142



6 
 

 

ADOPTED THIS the 18th day of May, 2020, by a vote of __ in favor and __ against. 

 
 
__________________________________________________ 
ALLAN P. ROOT, Mayor  

ATTESTED BY:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
_________________________________________________ ______________________________________________ 
DEREK K. HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk  JENNIFER O. JACKSON, Town Attorney  

143



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

Date of Meeting:  Monday, May 18, 2020 

Subject: Action on Proposed Code Amendments regarding parking and 
streets, mandated notices for quasi-judicial matters, mixed use 
development in C-1, C-2 and R-12 

Presenter:   Planning Director, Public Works Director 

Attachments: Proposed Ordinance 
 

Description: 

The attached proposed ordinance is presented for Town Council’s review and discussion.  

Due to the newly enacted laws concerning remote meetings and public hearing during the 
COVID-19 public health emergency, action cannot be taken until at least 24 hours after the 
public hearing which is to be held at 6:30 pm on May 18.  

The Mayor proposes to recess tonight’s meeting to Wednesday, May 20, 2020, at 6pm, in 
order for Town Council to legally take action on the proposed Code Amendments.  

 

Action Requested: 

Adoption of the proposed ordinance as presented, or as Town Council may wish to revise, 
at a recessed meeting of Town Council on Wednesday, May 20, 2020, at 6:00 pm.   

144



Page 1 
 

ORDINANCE AMENDING WEAVERVILLE TOWN CODE CHAPTERS 25 AND 36 
CONCERNING TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEES, MIXED USE DEVELOPMENT, 
MANDATED NOTICES FOR BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT, STREETS AND PARKING 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board has seen directly the positive value of a 

technical review committee in both subdivision applications and development applications 
under the Town’s zoning regulations, and, in its review on January 7, 2020, found the 
proposed Code amendments formalizing the technical review committee consistent with 
the Town’s comprehensive land use plan, reasonable, and in the best interest of the public 
in that such amendments formalize a multi-department professional review of proposed 
subdivisions and development, and voted unanimously to recommend such proposed 
amendments; 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board met on February 4, 2020, and discussed 
certain Code amendments concerning the regulations of mixed use development within the 
C-1, C-2 and R-12 zoning districts and found that the proposed Code amendments are 
consistent with the Town’s comprehensive land use plan and strategic plan in that a stated 
objective was to “consider a zoning district to serve as a transition between residential and 
commercial districts” and “consider mixed use development regulation as a means of 
expanding development in areas with geographic limitations,” and are reasonable and in 
the best interest of the public in that such amendments provide for a more expedited 
approval process and developmental certainty for mixed use development; 

 WHEREAS, after proper notice the Town Council held a public hearing on February 
24, 2020, in order to receive input from the public on the amendments related to a 
technical review committee;  

 WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board met on March 5, 2020, and discussed 
certain Code amendments concerning the provisions within the land development 
ordinances pertaining to streets, traffic, and parking and found (1) that the amendments 
proposed are consistent with the Town’s comprehensive land use plan in that the plan sets 
a goal of reviewing policies concerning standards for private streets and encourages review 
of regulations to ensure consistency with stated goals, and (2) that they are both 
reasonable and in the public interest in that they provide better clarity and remove 
inconsistencies in light of Town Council’s recent adoption of amendments to Chapter 24 
concerning streets and Chapter 28 concerning traffic and parking;  

 WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board met on March 5, 2020, and discussed 
certain Code amendments which would bring the notices requirements for matters before 
the Board of Adjustment into strict compliance with the provisions of North Carolina law 
and found that the amendments proposed are consistent with the Town’s comprehensive 
land use plan in that the plan sets a goal of reviewing its regulations for legal compliance 
and reasonable in light of the strict standards of standing in order to participate in matters 
before the Board of Adjustment;  

145



Page 2 
 

 WHEREAS, after proper notice the Town Council held a public hearing on May 18, 
2020, at 6:30 p.m., and offer a public comment period from April 30, 2020, through May 19, 
2020 at 6:30 p.m., in order to receive input from the public on the amendments related to 
mixed use development in the C-1, C-2, and R-12 zoning districts, mandated notices for 
quasi-judicial matters before the Board of Adjustment, and streets and parking provisions 
of the land development ordinances; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by Town Council of the Town of Weaverville, 
North Carolina, as follows: 

1. The findings and recommendations of the Planning and Zoning Board are hereby 
incorporated by reference and adopted by Town Council, including specifically a finding 
that the amendments approved herein are consistent with the Town’s adopted 
comprehensive land use plan and in the public’s interest. 

2. Concerning a technical review committee for land development:  

Code Section 25-78 is hereby amended as follows, with added language shown as 
underlined: 

Sec. 25-78. - General procedures for review of major and minor subdivisions.  

All applications for development of major or minor subdivisions, including for review of concept 
plans, preliminary plats and final plats, shall be submitted to the town planner at the Weaverville 
Town Hall. In order to be considered at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the planning and 
zoning board, applications must comply with all code requirements and be received at least ten 
business days before the meeting. The planning director shall coordinate an evaluation of all 
applications for minor and major subdivisions with a technical review committee consisting of 
members of individual municipal departments, including but not limited to the Fire Marshal and 
Public Works Director or their designees, who may offer expertise on the proposed development. 
The technical review committee shall offer an opinion on the application for a minor or major 
subdivision to the Planning and Zoning Board and Town Council based upon the committee’s 
findings or compliance with various sections of municipal ordinance and relevant federal and state 
laws, rules and regulations. All subdivisions shall be considered major subdivisions except those 
defined as minor subdivisions in section 25-27. Minor subdivisions shall be reviewed in accordance 
with the procedure set forth in section 25-79. The minor subdivision procedure may not be used a 
second time within three years from the date of its first use on any property which is less than 1,500 
feet from the original property boundaries by anyone who owned, had an option on, or any legal or 
equitable interest in the original subdivision at the time the original subdivision received concept 
plan, preliminary plat or final plat approval. Major subdivisions shall be reviewed in accordance with 
the procedures set forth in sections 25-81 through 25-83. 

Code Section 36-298 is hereby amended as follows, with added language shown as 
underlined: 

Sec. 36-298. - Zoning permits required.  

A zoning permit shall be obtained from the zoning administrator before beginning any construction 
on any lot within the town's zoning jurisdiction. No lot shall be graded so as to alter its contour and 
no building or other structure shall be erected, moved, added to, or structurally altered prior to the 
issuance of said zoning permit. In no event will the zoning administrator approve any permit for the 
grading of any lot or the construction or alteration of any building if such building, or its intended 

146



Page 3 
 

use would be in violation of any of the provisions of this chapter, or if the contour of any lot would 
be altered or graded in violation of the screening and buffering requirements of this chapter.  

(1)  Application for permit. All applications for zoning permits shall be accompanied by such 
information as the zoning administrator determines as needed for a full review of the 
request. Zoning administrator shall ensure that all applications are compliant with the 
applicable sections of this chapter prior to issuance of permit or transmittal to the decision-
making board.  

(2)  Issuance of zoning permit. Prior to issuing a zoning permit the zoning administrator shall 
first review the application and supporting documentation to determine compliance with all 
of the applicable requirements of this chapter. If the plans show that the proposed 
construction meets all of the requirements of this chapter the zoning administrator shall, 
prior to the issuance of the zoning permit, make an inspection of the site to determine that 
the actual location of all existing or proposed buildings or structures, parking areas, buffer 
strips etc. are located as shown on the plans. If the services of the town engineer or of a 
registered land surveyor are required to assure that the actual locations, on the ground, 
are as shown on the plans, the cost of this service shall be paid by the applicant prior to 
issuance of the zoning permit. Any such charges shall be in addition to the normal charges 
for such zoning permit. After the zoning administrator finds that the plans and on-site 
locations meet the requirements of this chapter, the administrator shall issue a zoning 
permit stating that the proposed construction, if built as located, meets the provisions of 
this chapter and that the applicant can apply for building and other permits. When reviewing 
proposed uses of land related to new commercial, industrial or multi-family residential 
development, or uses which require the issuance of or an amendment to a special use 
permit or the adoption of a conditional zoning district, the planning director shall coordinate 
an evaluation of the proposed development with a technical review committee consisting 
of members of individual municipal departments, including but not limited to the Fire 
Marshal and Public Works Director or their designees, who may offer expertise on the 
proposed development. The technical review committee shall offer an opinion on the 
proposed development to the Planning and Zoning Board and Town Council based upon 
the committee’s findings or compliance with various sections of municipal ordinance and 
relevant federal and state laws, rules and regulations.  

Explanatory note: While it may be obvious that a proposed building or structure to be 
located on a large tract of land meets the setback requirements by simple observation, 
actual field measurements would be required to determine compliance on a typical 
residential lot. All such measurements must be made from actual property or right-of-way 
lines using property corner or right-of-way markers. It may be assumed that the paved 
portion of any street or alley is in the center of the right-of-way for this purpose only if the 
right-of-way of record cannot be otherwise established by actual surveys.  

(3)  County permits required. After the zoning permit is approved and issued, the applicant shall 
apply to the Buncombe County Permits and Inspections Department, or any successor 
thereto, for building, plumbing, electrical or other required permits. If such permits are not 
issued within 60 days after issuance of the zoning permit, the zoning permit shall become 
invalid.  

(4)  Construction progress. If no substantial construction progress has been made within 180 
calendar days of the date of the issuance of the zoning permit, or if work is suspended for 
365 calendar days, the zoning permit shall become invalid; provided, however, the zoning 
administrator may extend the time for substantial construction progress to be made by up 
to 180 calendar days, for good cause shown. This provision shall not be applicable, 
however, for time periods for projects in conditional zoning districts, which shall be 
governed by subsection 36-84(e), or special use permits, which shall be governed by article 
IX.  

 

147



Page 4 
 

3. Concerning mixed use development in the C-1, C-2, and R-12 zoning districts:  
 
Code Section 36-105 is hereby amended as follows, with deleted language shown with 
strikethroughs and added language shown as underlined: 

Sec. 36-105. - Table of uses.  

USES  R-1  R-2  R-3  R-12  C-1  C-2  I-1  

MISCELLANEOUS USES  

Mixed-Use Building or Structure  -  -  -  
C 

PS  

C  

PS 

C 

PS  
-  

 

Code Section 36-140 is hereby added: 
Sec. 36-140. – Mixed-Use Building or Structure.  

(a)  Additional Standards applicable only within the R-12 zoning district for uses defined mixed use building 
or structure. 

1. Dwelling units are only permissible on the second or higher floor of any structure where the 
ground floor or street level floor is occupied by a use or uses otherwise permitted by right or with 
additional standards or by a conditional zoning district in the C-1 or C-2 Zoning District. 

2. The dimensional requirements for the R-12 zoning district and additional standards for the use 
defined as dwelling-multifamily (more than 4 units/per building are also fully applicable to the use 
defined mixed-use building or structure. 

3. In no case shall the number of dwelling units exceed 12 units per acre. 
4. Street lighting requirements made necessary by section 36-26 are fully applicable to the use of 

mixed use building or structure as defined in section 36-5 except that such requirements are 
hereby modified to provide the following: 

a. All lighting on the property shall be mounted on posts no more than 16 feet tall. 
b. Blocking, shielding and aiming of all exterior lighting shall be used to minimize light 

trespass on to adjoining residential properties. 
c. The exterior lighting plan shall be subject to review and approval by the town’s zoning 

administrator prior to installation. 
5. The collection and disposal of garbage and household trash accumulated at mixed use buildings 

or structures shall be the responsibility of the owner of the land on which the building is located. 
Likewise, yard trash, tree and shrubbery trimmings and household appliances shall be collected 
and disposed of by the owner of the land.  

6. All containment devices for trash and recyclables, including compactors, dumpsters, commercial 
roll-out bins, and areas for storing cardboard shall be placed in the side or rear yards only and 
located and designed so as not to be visible from the view of adjacent streets and properties. All 
containment areas shall meet the following standards: 

a. All containment areas shall be enclosed to contain windblown litter. 
b. Enclosures shall be at least as high as the highest point of the compactor or dumpster. 
c. Enclosures shall be made of materials that are opaque at the time of installation (such as 

a fence, wall or mature opaque vegetation) and compatible with and/or similar to the 
design and materials of the principal building. 

d. Compactors and dumpsters shall be placed on a concrete pad that is large enough to 
provide adequate support and allow for positive drainage, and conform to the Buncombe 

148



Page 5 
 

County Health Department regulations governing compactor pads. A concrete apron shall 
also extend from the pad for support and access. 

e. Enclosures shall contain gates to allow for access and security. 
f. Dumpsters and compactors shall be located within the side or rear yard behind buildings 

and away from sidewalks or pedestrian circulation. Such locations should be accessible 
to service vehicles. 

g. Enclosures shall be landscaped in accordance with article VI of Chapter 36. 
 
(b)  Additional Standards applicable only within the C-1 zoning district for uses defined mixed use building 

or structure. 

1. Dwelling units are only permissible on the second or higher floor of any structure where the 
ground floor or street level floor is occupied by a use or uses otherwise permitted by right or with 
additional standards or by a conditional zoning district in the C-1 Zoning District. 

2. In no case shall the number of dwelling units exceed 4 units per building notwithstanding the 
latter permissible density bonus for additional off street parking places provided. 

3. Street lighting requirements made necessary by section 36-26 are fully applicable to the use of 
mixed use building or structure as defined in section 36-5 except that such requirements are 
hereby modified to provide the following: 

a. All lighting on the property shall be mounted on posts no more than 16 feet tall. 
b. Blocking, shielding and aiming of all exterior lighting shall be used to minimize light 

trespass on to adjoining residential properties. 
c. The exterior lighting plan shall be subject to review and approval by the town’s zoning 

administrator prior to installation. 
4. The collection and disposal of garbage and household trash accumulated at mixed use buildings 

or structures shall be the responsibility of the owner of the land on which the building is located. 
Likewise, yard trash, tree and shrubbery trimmings and household appliances shall be collected 
and disposed of by the owner of the land.  

a. A waiver of the foregoing requirement may be achieved in writing from the Town 
Manager or their designee upon showing of good cause. Factors for consideration 
include but are not limited to available space on the subject property, or any variable 
related to the public health or safety.     

5.  All containment devices for trash and recyclables, including compactors, dumpsters, commercial 
roll-out bins, and areas for storing cardboard shall be placed in the side or rear yards only and 
located and designed so as not to be visible from the view of adjacent streets and properties. All 
containment areas shall meet the following standards: 

b. All containment areas shall be enclosed to contain windblown litter. 
c. Enclosures shall be at least as high as the highest point of the compactor or dumpster. 
d. Enclosures shall be made of materials that are opaque at the time of installation (such as 

a fence, wall or mature opaque vegetation) and compatible with and/or similar to the 
design and materials of the principal building. 

e. Compactors and dumpsters shall be placed on a concrete pad that is large enough to 
provide adequate support and allow for positive drainage, and conform to the Buncombe 
County Health Department regulations governing compactor pads. A concrete apron shall 
also extend from the pad for support and access. Enclosures shall contain gates to allow 
for access and security. 

f. Enclosures shall contain gates to allow for access and security. 
g. Dumpsters and compactors shall be located within the side or rear yard behind buildings 

and away from sidewalks or pedestrian circulation. Such locations should be accessible 
to service vehicles. 

h. Enclosures shall be landscaped in accordance with article VI of Chapter 36. 
6. Within the C-1 Zoning District additional dwelling units may be permitted up to a maximum of 

eight dwelling units per building provided the property owner provide off street parking in addition 
to those spaces required by Article VII of this Chapter at a ratio of two spaces per additional 
dwelling unit.  

 

149



Page 6 
 

(c) Additional Standards applicable only within the C-2 zoning district for uses defined mixed use building 
or structure. 

1. Dwelling units are only permissible on the second or higher floor of any structure where the 
ground floor or street level floor is occupied by a use or uses otherwise permitted by right or with 
additional standards or by a conditional zoning district in the C-1 or C-2 Zoning District. 

2. The dimensional requirements for the C-2 zoning district and additional standards for the use 
defined as dwelling-multifamily (more than 4 units/per building are also fully applicable to the use 
defined mixed-use building or structure. 

3. In no case shall the number of dwelling units exceed 8 units per acre. 
4. Street lighting requirements made necessary by section 36-26 are fully applicable to the use of 

mixed use building or structure as defined in section 36-5 except that such requirements are 
hereby modified to provide the following: 

a. All lighting on the property shall be mounted on posts no more than 16 feet tall. 
b. Blocking, shielding and aiming of all exterior lighting shall be used to minimize light 

trespass on to adjoining residential properties. 
c. The exterior lighting plan shall be subject to review and approval by the town’s zoning 

administrator prior to installation. 
5. The collection and disposal of garbage and household trash accumulated at mixed use buildings 

or structures shall be the responsibility of the owner of the land on which the building is located. 
Likewise, yard trash, tree and shrubbery trimmings and household appliances shall be collected 
and disposed of by the owner of the land.  

6.  All containment devices for trash and recyclables, including compactors, dumpsters, commercial 
roll-out bins, and areas for storing cardboard shall be placed in the side or rear yards only and 
located and designed so as not to be visible from the view of adjacent streets and properties. All 
containment areas shall meet the following standards: 

a. All containment areas shall be enclosed to contain windblown litter. 
b. Enclosures shall be at least as high as the highest point of the compactor or dumpster. 
c. Enclosures shall be made of materials that are opaque at the time of installation (such as 

a fence, wall or mature opaque vegetation) and compatible with and/or similar to the 
design and materials of the principal building. 

d. Compactors and dumpsters shall be placed on a concrete pad that is large enough to 
provide adequate support and allow for positive drainage, and conform to the Buncombe 
County Health Department regulations governing compactor pads. A concrete apron shall 
also extend from the pad for support and access. Enclosures shall contain gates to allow 
for access and security. 

e. Enclosures shall contain gates to allow for access and security. 
f. Dumpsters and compactors shall be located within the side or rear yard behind buildings 

and away from sidewalks or pedestrian circulation. Such locations should be accessible 
to service vehicles. 

g. Enclosures shall be landscaped in accordance with article VI of Chapter 36. 
 

4. Concerning mandated notices for quasi-judicial matters, Code Section 36-329 is hereby 
amended as follows, with deleted language shown with strikethroughs and added 
language shown as underlined: 

 
Sec. 36-329. - Hearings and notices.  

(a)  Hearing . The zoning board of adjustment shall hold a public hearing and enter a written decision on 
all matters upon which it is required to decide under this chapter. The public hearing shall be held 
within 30-days 45 days after receipt by the town clerk of an application for a special use permit or 
variance or a notice of appeal, unless otherwise agreed to by the applicant. The board shall follow 
quasi-judicial procedures when deciding appeals, requests for variances and requests for special use 
permits. The board shall decide the matter within 60-days after the conclusion of the hearing. Upon a 

150



Page 7 
 

hearing before the zoning board of adjustment, any party may appear in person, or by agent, or by an 
attorney.  

(b)  Notice . Notice of the time and the place of the public hearing shall be published weekly for two 
consecutive weeks in a newspaper of general circulation in the town. The first weekly notice shall be 
published not less than ten days nor more than 25 days before the date fixed for the public hearing. In 
computing such period, the day of publication is not to be included, but the day of the hearing shall be 
included. Notice of hearings shall be mailed to the person or entity whose appeal, application or 
request is the subject of the hearing; to the owner of the property that is the subject of the hearing if 
the owner did not initiate the hearing; and to the owners of all parcels of land abutting the parcel of 
land that is the subject of the hearing and to all property owners within 500 feet of the property 
boundaries even if their property is not abutting. Notice to such persons or entities must be deposited 
in the mail at least ten days, but not more than 25 days, prior to the date of the hearing. Within that 
same time period, a notice of hearing shall be prominently posted on the site that is the subject of the 
hearing or on an adjacent street or highway right-of-way.  

(c)  Oaths . The chair of the board of adjustment or any member temporarily acting as chair and the clerk 
to the board are authorized to administer oaths to witnesses in any matter coming before the board. 
Any person who, while under oath during a proceeding before the board of adjustment, willfully swears 
falsely is guilty of a class 1 misdemeanor.  

(d)  Subpoenas . The board of adjustment through the chair, or in the chair's absence anyone acting as 
chair, may subpoena witnesses and compel the production of evidence. To request issuance of a 
subpoena, persons with standing under G.S. § 160A-393(d) may make a written request to the chair 
explaining why it is necessary for certain witnesses or evidence to be compelled. The chair shall issue 
requested subpoenas he or she determines to be relevant, reasonable in nature and scope, and not 
oppressive. The chair shall rule on any motion to quash or modify a subpoena. Decisions regarding 
subpoenas made by the chair may be appealed to the full board of adjustment. If a person fails or 
refuses to obey a subpoena issued pursuant to this subsection, the board of adjustment or the party 
seeking the subpoena may apply to the general court of justice for an order requiring that its subpoena 
be obeyed, and the court shall have jurisdiction to issue these orders after notice to all proper parties.  

 
5. Concerning streets and parking:  

Code Section 25-111 is hereby amended as follows, with deleted language shown with 
strikethroughs and added language shown as underlined: 

Sec. 25-111. - Streets.  

(a)  Type of street required. All subdivision lots shall abut on a "public" street as herein defined or on a 
"private" street with reference to which there is a duly recorded maintenance agreement as provided 
for in this chapter. All public streets may be dedicated to the town or to the state. All public and private 
streets shall be built to the standards of this chapter established in Chapter 24 and all other applicable 
standards of the town and the state department of transportation, whichever is the more restrictive 
standard.  

A written maintenance agreement providing for maintenance of the street until it is added to the town 
or state highway system shall be included with the final plat. Such agreement shall be recorded as 
provided for in other sections of this chapter.  

(b)  Subdivision street disclosure statement. All streets shown on the final plat shall comply with the 
provisions of G.S. 136-102.6 and a designation as "public" shall be conclusively presumed to be an 
offer of dedication to the town or state. Where streets are offered to be dedicated but are not finally 
accepted into the town or state system, before lots are sold, a statement explaining the status of the 
street shall be included on the final plat.  

(c)  Access to adjacent properties. Where, in the opinion of the planning and zoning board and/or the town 
council, it may be necessary to provide for public street access to an adjoining property not within the 

151



Page 8 
 

subdivision proposed streets shall, as allowed by law, be extended by dedication to the boundary of 
such public adjoining property and a temporary turnaround provided. The extension dedicated shall 
have the same right-of-way width as the street being extended.  

(d)  Nonresidential streets. The subdivider of a nonresidential subdivision shall provide streets constructed 
in accordance with I.F-4 of the North Carolina Department of Transportation, Division of Highways 
Subdivision Roads Minimum Construction Standards, July 1, 1985, as amended, and the standards in 
this chapter, whichever are stricter in regard to each particular item.  

(e)  Design standards. The design of all streets and roads within the jurisdiction of this chapter shall be in 
accordance with the accepted policies of the state department of transportation, division of highways, 
which are patterned on the American Association of State Highway Officials (AASHO) manuals. The 
North Carolina Department of Transportation, Division of Highways Subdivision Roads Minimum 
Construction Standards, July 1, 1985, as amended, shall apply for any items not included in this 
chapter, or where they may be stricter than this chapter.  

(f)  Other requirements.  

(1)  Through traffic discouraged on residential collector and local streets. Residential collector and 
local streets shall be laid out in such a way that their use by through traffic will be discouraged. 
Provision shall be made for the free flow of traffic so as not to cause undue congestion. All streets 
shall be designed or walkways shall be dedicated to assure convenient access to parks, 
playgrounds, schools, or other places of public assembly.  

(2)  Sidewalks. Sidewalks may be required as provided in Sec. 36-24. by the planning and zoning 
board or the town council on one or both sides of a street in areas likely to be subject to heavy 
pedestrian traffic such as near schools and shopping areas, or in other areas as deemed 
appropriate by the planning and zoning board or by the town council. Such sidewalks shall be 
constructed to a minimum width of five feet, and shall consist of a minimum thickness of four 
inches of concrete. All sidewalks shall be within the street right-of-way, unless the subdivision is 
platted as a planned unit or group development. Sidewalks shall consist of a minimum of eight 
inches of concrete at driveway crossings and at handicapped ramps.  

(3)  Street names. Street names shall be subject to the approval of Buncombe County E-911 
Addressing. Proposed streets which are in alignment with existing streets and which will constitute 
extension of the existing street shall be given the same name as the existing street. In assigning 
new street names, duplication of existing names shall be avoided. In no case shall a proposed 
street name be phonetically similar to an existing street name used in Buncombe County 
irrespective of the use of a suffix such as street, road, drive, place, court, etc. Street names shall 
be subject to the approval of the planning and zoning board and/or the town council.  

(4)  Street name and other signs. All subdividers shall be required to provide and erect street name 
signs to town standards at all intersections within the subdivision. Subdividers shall also erect 
traffic control and directional signs in appropriate locations.  

(5)  Permits for connection to state roads. An approved permit shall be required for connection to an 
existing state system road. Such permit shall be required prior to any construction on the street 
or road. A permit application may be obtained at the office of the nearest district engineer of the 
division of highways.  

(6)  Offsets to utility poles. Poles for overhead utilities shall be located back from roadway shoulders, 
preferably a minimum of at least 30 feet from the edge of pavement on major thoroughfares. On 
streets with curb and gutter, utility poles should be set back a minimum distance of six feet from 
the face of the curb.  

(7)  ADA accessibility Ramps for handicapped persons. Where curbs are provided on streets or where 
curbs and sidewalks are constructed within any subdivision, any construction or reconstruction of 
such curbs and sidewalks shall be in full compliance with ADA accessibility standards. the 
provisions of G.S. 136-44.14 which sets forth standards for providing curb ramps or curb cuts for 
handicapped persons.  

152



Page 9 
 

(8)  Guard rails. Guardrails may be required in areas of danger where deemed appropriate by the 
planning and zoning board or by the town council. Guardrails must be constructed in accordance 
with the minimum standards for subdivisions as established by North Carolina Department of 
Transportation or the North Carolina Fire Prevention Code, whichever is stricter.  

(9)  Horizontal width for bridge decks. Bridges. Bridges must be constructed in accordance with the 
minimum standards for subdivisions as established by North Carolina Department of 
Transportation or the North Carolina Fire Prevention Code, whichever is stricter. 

a.  The clear roadway widths for new and reconstructed bridges serving two-lane, two-way traffic 
shall be as follows:  

1.  Shoulder section approach.  

Under 800 ADT Design Year: Minimum 28 feet width face-to-face of parapets or rails 
or pavement width plus ten feet, whichever is greater.  

800—2000 ADT Design Year: Minimum 34 feet width face-to-face of parapets or rails 
or pavement width plus 12 feet, whichever is greater.  

Over 2000 ADT Design Year: Minimum 40 feet. Desirable 44 feet width face-to-face of 
parapets or rails.  

2.  Curb and gutter approach.  

Under 800 ADT Design Year: Minimum 24 feet face-to-face of curbs.  

Over 800 ADT Design Year: Width of approach pavement measured face-to-face of 
curbs.  

Where curb and gutter sections are used on roadway approaches, curbs on bridges 
shall match the curbs on approaches in height, in width of face-to-face of curbs, and in 
crown drop. The distance from face of curb to face of parapet or rail shall be three feet 
minimum, or greater if sidewalks are required.  

b.  The clear roadway widths for new and reconstructed bridges having four or more lanes 
serving undivided two-way traffic shall be as follows:  

1.  Shoulder section approach. Width of approach pavement plus width of usable 
shoulders on the approach left and right.  

2.  Curb and gutter approach. Width of approach pavement measured face-to face of curbs. 

 (10) Curbs and gutter.  Street curbs and gutters must be constructed in accordance with the street 
standards established in Chapter 24. Curbs and gutters shall be provided where deemed 
necessary by the town council upon recommendation of the planning and zoning board, the street 
maintenance superintendent, and/or the town's consulting engineer in order to provide adequate 
drainage because of high traffic volume, poor soil conditions, or where other similar conditions or 
special problems exist which justify the necessity of curbs and gutters.  

 

Code Section 36-176 is hereby amended as follows, with deleted language shown with 
strikethroughs and added language shown as underlined: 

Sec. 36-176. - Off-street parking.  

(a)  Off-street automobile storage or parking space shall be provided on every lot on which any of the 
following uses are hereafter established. Each parking space shall have an all weather surface with 

153



Page 10 
 

minimum dimensions of nine by 18 feet. The number of parking spaces provided shall be at least as 
great as the number specified below for various uses. Each space shall be provided with vehicular 
access to a street or alley. 

[TABLE NOT CHANGED] 

(b)  Extension of parking space into a residential district. Required parking space may not extend from a 
commercial (C-1 and C-2) use district or from a conditional use district (CZD) that contains any 
commercial or office use into any residential use district.  

(c)  Notwithstanding the foregoing, no additional off-street parking other than the parking currently 
available in the C-1 central business district shall be required except where the structures currently 
located on an existing lot of record containing more than 1,875 square feet are razed and the lot of 
record is put to a new use in which event the parking regulations of section 36-176 shall be fully 
applicable to said property.  

(d) Joint use of parking lots. The required parking space for any number of separate uses may be 
combined in one lot, but the required number of spaces assigned to one use may not be assigned to 
another for use during the same hours. 

(e) Remote parking.  For any use except residential, if the off-street parking spaces required by this 
division cannot be reasonably provided on the same lot on which the use is located, such spaces may 
be provided on any land within 800 feet walking distance of any entrance to such use, provided that 
the district use regulations for the district in which the remote parking spaces are located permit the 
use which the parking space serves.  

  

6. It is the intention of Town Council that the sections and paragraphs of this Ordinance are 
severable and if any section or paragraph of this Ordinance shall be declared 
unconstitutional or otherwise invalid by the valid judgment or decree of any court of 
competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality or invalidity shall not affect any of the 
remaining paragraphs or sections of this Ordinance, since they would have been enacted 
by Town Council without the incorporation in this Ordinance of any such 
unconstitutional or invalid section or paragraph. 

7. These amendments shall be effective immediately upon adoption and immediately 
codified. 

 

ADOPTED THIS the _____ day of _____, 2020, by a vote of ___ in favor and __ against. 

 
__________________________________________________ 
ALLAN P. ROOT, Mayor  

ATTESTED BY:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
_________________________________________________ ______________________________________________ 
DEREK K. HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk  JENNIFER O. JACKSON, Town Attorney  

154



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

Date of Meeting:  Monday, May 18, 2020 

Subject: Action on Proposed Conditional Zoning District for Multi-
Tenant Development at 20 and 30 Garrison Branch Road  

Presenter: Planning Director, Public Works Director 

Attachments: Proposed Ordinance 
 

Description: 

The attached proposed ordinance is presented for Town Council’s review and discussion.  

Due to the newly enacted laws concerning remote meetings and public hearing during the 
COVID-19 public health emergency, action cannot be taken until at least 24 hours after the 
public hearing which is to be held at 6:30 pm on May 18.  

The Mayor proposes to recess tonight’s meeting to Wednesday, May 20, 2020, at 6pm, in 
order for Town Council to legally take action on the proposed Code Amendments.  

 

Action Requested: 

Adoption of the proposed ordinance as presented, or as Town Council may wish to revise, 
at a recessed meeting of Town Council on Wednesday, May 20, 2020, at 6:00 pm.   

155



 
 

1 
 

ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE  
CONDITIONAL ZONING DISTRICT DESIGNATED AS CZD-5  

GARRISON RESERVE PROJECT ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 
10 AND 30 GARRISON BRANCH ROAD 

  
WHEREAS, on February 10, 2020, Garrison Branch Acquisitions LLC submitted an 

application for a conditional zoning district for a project to be known as “Garrison Reserve” 
on property located at 10 and 30 Garrison Branch Road, Weaverville, North Carolina; and 

WHEREAS, the project consists of a multi-tenant commercial development 
consisting of three buildings housing a mix of retail, warehouse, and office spaces for a total 
square footage of approximately 70,000 square feet, and an outparcel for a future building 
and use; and 

 WHEREAS, the project is being developed on that 4.89 acre tract(s) located near the 
southwestern corner of the intersection of Monticello Road and US 25/70, described in 
Book 5806 at Page 498 and Book 5806 at Page 490, and bearing Buncombe County Parcel 
Identification Numbers 9733-72-2155 and 9733-72-0316, and shown as Parcels 1 and 2 on 
that plat recorded in Book 201 at Page 74, Buncombe County Registry;  

WHEREAS, the property is currently zoned C-2 and a multi-tenant development 
exceeding 25,000 square feet requires a conditional zoning district; and  

 WHEREAS, the Town of Weaverville has the authority pursuant to Part 3 of Article 
19 of Chapter 160A of the North Carolina General Statutes to adopt zoning regulations, to 
establish zoning districts and to classify property within its jurisdiction according to zoning 
district, and to amend said regulations and district classifications from time to time in the 
interest of the public health, safety and welfare; and 

 WHEREAS, Section 36-84 of the Code of Ordinances of the Town of Weaverville 
establishes the procedures and requirements for zoning property to Conditional Zoning 
Districts; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board of the Town of Weaverville has reviewed 
the project and submitted a unanimous favorable recommendation along with its 
statement finding the reasonableness of the project and consistency with the 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan; and 

WHEREAS, this project is consistent with the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan 
in that it is consistent with the future land use map which identifies the property as being 
within the mixed use area of Monticello Road, is consistent with the use and dimensional 
requirements of the Town’s underlying C-2 zoning district which was designed and 
implemented specifically to accommodate commercial uses, and, with the recommended 
conditions, can co-exist with the multifamily residential development that is occurring in 
the area; and 

156



 
 

2 
 

WHEREAS, a public involvement meeting was held on Thursday, May 14, 2020, after 
proper notice of same and [no negative comments were received] [comments were noted 
as follows: _________________________________]; and 

WHEREAS, a traffic analysis was not conducted as staff believes that the peak hour 
trips would not trigger the requirement stated in Town Code Section 36-25; and 

WHEREAS, after proper notice required by law, Town Council held a public hearing 
on this application on May 18, 2020 at 6:30 pm, and held a public comment period from 
April 30, 2020 until May 19, 2020 at 6:30 p.m., in order to receive public input on this 
project; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
OF WEAVERVILLE THAT: 

1. The zoning classification of the real property described herein, including the 
outparcel, is changed from C-2 to Conditional Zoning District and is subject to 
compliance with the conditions set out herein. The official zoning map of the Town 
of Weaverville shall be amended to reflect this change upon the effective date of this 
ordinance. 

2. The outparcel is specifically included in this conditional zoning district. Future 
development on the outparcel must be approved as a major modification to the 
conditional zoning district after full compliance with the conditional zoning district 
process and procedures established by Code Section 36-84. 

3. The following conditions shall apply: 

a. The project is to be constructed in substantial compliance with the following 
plans submitted by the applicant, copies of which are attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference: 

i. Master plan – Sheet C200 
ii. Site plan – Sheet C201 

iii. Grading, erosion control and storm drainage plan – C301 
iv. Utility plan – Sheet C601 
v. Building elevations – Sheets A201, A202 

vi. Building elevation renderings 

b. The height of buildings constructed on the site may not exceed the height as 
indicated on the plans and elevations identified in subparagraph (a) above.  

c. The exterior of the buildings must be substantially similar to the building 
elevations attached hereto and incorporated herein with the following 
construction materials: metal panels and fiber cement siding. 

d. Sidewalks are required along all portions of the property, including the 
outparcel, which front Garrison Branch Road to provide access to the 

157



 
 

3 
 

apartment complex that is under construction on the property adjoining to 
the west.  

e. All driveways/streets within the project shall be private. Said private 
driveways/streets shall be constructed in such a way as to allow reasonable 
access for the anticipated traffic of the multi-tenant development proposed 
and for ease of emergency access, including full compliance with the North 
Carolina Fire Prevention Code. A driveway permit for the entrance onto 
Garrison Branch Road must be secured from the North Carolina Department 
of Transportation. 

f. A minimum of 159 off-street parking spaces, with a minimum size of 9 feet by 
18 feet, must be provided and must be constructed and maintain in an all-
weather condition.  

g. The warehousing that is proposed is for mini-warehouses, as that term is 
defined by Code Section 36-5, and is limited to interior storage in Building C 
only. Warehousing with exterior storage of any kind is expressly prohibited.  

h. One freestanding sign at the entrance of the project is allowed as long as it 
complies with the standards contained in Article VIII of Chapter 36 of the 
Town’s Code of Ordinances.  

i. Any and all outdoor lighting that is to be installed must comply with Town 
Code Section 36-26, except as specifically provided in this paragraph. All 
outdoor lighting on the property shall be mounted on posts that are no more 
than 16 feet tall. Blocking, shielding and aiming of all outdoor lighting shall 
be used to minimize light trespass on to adjoining residential properties.  The 
outdoor lighting plan must be submitted and approved in conjunction with a 
zoning permit application. 

j. Landscape buffers between the property and adjoining properties are 
required.  Landscaping must comply with Article VI of Chapter 36 of the 
Town’s Code of Ordinances. A landscaping plan must be submitted and 
approved in conjunction with a zoning permit application. 

k. Grading, sedimentation and erosion control, and storm drainage plans must 
be reviewed and permitted by Buncombe County. 

l. Construction related vehicles must be parked on the property and not on the 
public streets or the shoulders of those public streets. All dirt, mud, 
construction materials, or other debris deposited on the public streets as a 
result of construction activities must be removed by the contractor or owner 
on a daily basis, pursuant to Code Section 22-48. 

m. All construction must be completed within 36 months of the issuance of a 
Town of Weaverville zoning permit. Upon request of the owner/developer, 

158



 
 

4 
 

Town Council may, in its sole discretion, grant such extension as Town 
Council deems appropriate under the circumstances. 

n. Code Section 36-84 shall continue to govern the project including, but not 
limited, to those provisions regarding issuance of zoning permits, 
modifications, appeals, and final plat approval. 

4. The Town Zoning Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to make the 
changes as herein enacted on the official zoning map with said Conditional Zoning 
District labeled as “CZD-5” and to issue zoning permits for the improvements that 
are to be made in compliance with this Conditional Zoning District. 

5. That if any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance is, for 
any reason, held to be invalid, it will be up to Town Council to determine if the 
validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance is affected.  

6. That all ordinances and clauses of ordinances contained within the Town’s Code of 
Ordinance which are in conflict herewith, are hereby repealed to the extent of such 
conflict. 

7. This ordinance and the regulations and conditions contained herein are subject to 
the consent of the property owner which is indicated below.  

8. That this ordinance is effective immediately.  
 
ADOPTED THIS the _____ day of _____, 2020, with a vote of ___ for and ___ against. 

 
 
_____________________________________________________ 
ALLAN P. ROOT, Mayor 

 
_____________________________________________________ 
DEREK K. HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 
OWNER CONSENT TO CONDITIONS: 
 
 GARRISON BRANCH ACQUISITIONS LLC 
 

_____________________________________________________ 
______________________________, Manager 

 
 Date: 

159



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  May 18, 2020 

SUBJECT: COVID-19 Update 

PRESENTER:   Town Manager 

ATTACHMENTS: None 
  
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

The Mayor, Town Manager, and other staff will be available at tonight’s meeting to give a brief 
update on the COVID-19 public health emergency and the Town’s response. 

 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Discussion and action in the discretion of Town Council. 

160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



Town of Weaverville 

Town Council Agenda Item 

 

 

Date of Meeting:   Monday, May 18, 2020 

Subject:    Police Department Report for the 1st Quarter of 2020 

Presenter:    Chief of Police Ron Davis 

Attachments:    Police Department Reports – Q1 2020 

Description:    

Attached you will find a report for police activities, response times, crime reports and graphs. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Action Requested:   None 

 

175



W
EA

VE
RV

IL
LE

 P
OL

IC
E 

DE
PA

RT
M

EN
T 

 
QU

AR
TE

RL
Y 

RE
PO

RT
 F

EB
RU

AR
Y-

AP
RI

L 
20

20

A
ct

iv
ity

 in
 g

en
er

al
 is

 d
ow

n:
  O

ff
ic

er
 in

iti
at

ed
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 a
re

 d
ow

n 
sin

ce
 th

e 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

or
de

rs
 

an
d 

so
ci

al
 d

ist
an

ci
ng

 w
en

t i
nt

o 
ef

fe
ct

.  
Th

us
 a

re
as

 su
ch

 a
s 

dr
ug

 o
ff

en
se

s, 
tra

ff
ic

 v
io

la
tio

ns
, 

ci
ta

tio
ns

 is
su

ed
an

d 
ar

re
st

s a
re

 a
ll 

do
w

n.

A
ct

iv
ity

 is
 u

p 
in

 o
th

er
 a

re
as

: A
ft

er
 e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
or

de
rs

 w
en

t i
nt

o 
ef

fe
ct

, r
eq

ue
st

s f
or

 e
xt

ra
 

bu
sin

es
s s

ec
ur

ity
 c

he
ck

s 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

21
%

 s
in

ce
 s

to
re

s h
av

e 
cl

os
ed

 o
r 

m
od

ifi
ed

 h
ou

rs
.  

A
la

rm
 

re
sp

on
se

s h
av

e 
al

so
 in

cr
ea

se
d.

  A
lso

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 w

el
fa

re
 c

he
ck

s 
on

 c
iti

ze
ns

 a
re

 u
p 

24
%

 e
tc

.

C
rim

e 
is

 d
ow

n 
in

 m
os

t a
ll 

ca
te

go
rie

s 
in

 g
en

er
al

:  
Th

er
e 

w
er

e 
no

re
po

rt
ed

 v
io

le
nt

 c
rim

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 ro

bb
er

ie
s, 

ra
pe

, a
ss

au
lts

, a
rs

on
 e

tc
., 

du
rin

g 
th

is 
qu

ar
te

r. 
 A

nd
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 B
re

ak
in

g 
&

 
En

te
rin

g’
s, 

au
to

 th
ef

ts
 e

tc
., 

ar
e 

al
so

 d
ow

n.

C
rim

e 
is

 u
p 

in
 a

 f
ew

 c
at

eg
or

ie
s:

  W
ith

 a
n 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
am

ou
nt

 o
f 

fo
ot

 tr
af

fic
 in

 s
to

re
s, 

sh
op

lif
tin

g,
 

la
rc

en
y 

of
 g

oo
ds

 a
nd

 tr
es

pa
ss

in
g 

ar
e 

al
l t

re
nd

in
g 

up
w

ar
d.

   
   

17
6



W
EA

VE
RV

IL
LE

 P
OL

IC
E 

DE
PA

RT
M

EN
T 

 
QU

AR
TE

RL
Y 

RE
PO

RT
 F

EB
RU

AR
Y-

AP
RI

L 
20

20

A
ct

iv
ity

:T
he

re
 w

er
e 

2,
30

2 
ca

lls
 f

or
 s

er
vi

ce
/a

ct
iv

iti
es

 (m
in

us
 b

us
in

es
s 

&
 r

es
id

en
tia

l c
he

ck
s)

 v
s. 

2,
80

7 
la

st
 y

ea
r, 

re
fle

ct
in

g 
a 

18
%

 d
ec

re
as

e.
 

A
rr

es
ts

:T
he

re
 w

er
e 

46
 a

rr
es

ts
 la

st
 q

ua
rt

er
 v

s. 
53

 a
rr

es
ts

 la
st

 y
ea

r, 
re

fle
ct

in
g 

a 
13

%
 

de
cr

ea
se

.  

A
cc

id
en

ts
:T

he
re

 w
er

e 
36

 v
eh

ic
le

 c
ol

lis
io

ns
 w

ith
 1

 in
ju

ry
 v

s. 
52

 c
ol

lis
io

ns
 w

ith
 8

 in
ju

rie
s 

la
st

 
ye

ar
 r

ef
le

ct
in

g 
a 

31
%

 d
ec

re
as

e.

To
ta

l R
ep

or
te

d 
In

ci
de

nt
 S

um
m

ar
y:

•2
13

 T
yp

e 
“A

” 
&

 “
B”

 o
ff

en
se

s 
th

is 
pe

rio
d.

•2
41

 T
yp

e 
“A

” 
&

 “
B”

 o
ff

en
se

 th
is 

pe
rio

d 
la

st
 y

ea
r, 

re
fle

ct
in

g 
an

 a
lm

os
t 1

2%
 d

ec
re

as
e.

17
7



MO
NT

HL
Y 

TR
EN

DS
 EX

AM
PL

ES
 

15
7

12
2

31
27

14

4

20
15

5
13

7

21

02040608010
0

12
0

14
0

16
0

18
0

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch
A

pr
il

C
ita

tio
ns

/W
ar

ni
ng

s
A

rr
es

ts
D

ru
g 

O
ff

en
se

s
La

rc
en

y/
Sh

op
lif

tin
g

17
8



TO
P 

10
 R

EP
OR

TE
D 

IN
CI

DE
NT

S

D
ru

g,
 4

0

La
rc

en
y/

Sh
op

lif
tin

g,
 4

1

Tr
es

sp
as

s,
 1

2

Fr
au

d/
Fa

ls
e 

Pr
et

en
se

, 7

Pr
op

er
ty

 
D

am
ag

e/
V

an
da

lis
m

, 6

Th
ef

t f
ro

m
 a

 M
V,

 5

Th
ef

t f
ro

m
 a

 b
ui

ld
in

g,
 5

Fo
rg

er
y 

/C
ou

nt
er

fe
iti

ng
, 4

M
ot

or
 V

eh
ic

le
 T

he
ft

, 3
W

ea
po

n 
V

io
la

tio
ns

, 3

17
9



RE
SP

ON
SE

 T
IM

ES
 F

EB
-A

PR
 2

02
0 

VS
. 2

01
9

H
ig

h 
pr

io
rit

y-
av

er
ag

e 
   

   
3.

22
vs

. 3
.8

4

A
ve

ra
ge

 p
rio

rit
y-

av
er

ag
e 

  4
.3

8
vs

. 5
.5

5

Lo
w

 p
rio

rit
y-

av
er

ag
e 

   
   

  2
.7

1
vs

. 2
.9

8

N
ot

e:
  A

ll 
re

sp
on

se
 ti

m
es

 a
re

 d
ow

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
fir

st
 ti

m
e 

in
 a

lm
os

t 1
8 

m
on

th
s.

H
ig

h 
Pr

io
rit

y 
C

al
ls

-
Re

sp
on

se
 to

 th
e 

is 
ur

ge
nt

(i.
e.

 in
 p

ro
gr

es
s, 

w
ea

po
n 

ca
lls

 e
tc

.)

A
ve

ra
ge

 P
rio

rit
y 

C
al

ls-
Re

sp
on

se
 to

 th
e 

sc
en

e 
is 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
bu

t n
ot

 u
rg

en
t.

Lo
w

 p
rio

rit
y 

C
al

ls-
A

ct
io

n 
on

 th
is 

ty
pe

 o
f 

ca
ll 

is 
so

m
et

im
es

 h
an

dl
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

ph
on

e 
(i.

e.
 s

om
eo

ne
 

ju
st

 n
ee

ds
 to

 s
pe

ak
 to

 a
n 

of
fic

er
) t

hu
s 

th
e 

th
er

e 
is 

a 
sh

or
te

r 
re

sp
on

se
 ti

m
e.

18
0



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

Date of Meeting:  May 18, 2020   

Subject:   Quarterly Report-Fire Department 

Presenter:   Fire Chief  

Attachments:   Quarterly Report  

 

Description: 

Attached please find the quarterly report for the department 

 

Council Action Requested: 

No action needed. 

 

181



 
Total Calls For The Quarter -       434 
 
 Call Breakdown by Category –  
   
  Fire        19 
  Overpressure, Rupture, Explosion, Overheat  0 
  Emergency Medical     211 
  Hazardous Condition     13   
  Service Calls       73 
  Good Intent Calls      80 
  False Alarms       29   
  Severe Weather      9 
 
Average response Time for all Calls- 6:28 
 
Responded to 74.58% of all calls within the 8 minute industry standard. 
The calls that make up the remaining percentage were mutual aid to neighboring departments 
or calls where we would be requested to stage away until law enforcement determined the 
scene was safe to enter. This number will also be impacted by calls for routine assistance which 
are calls identified within the Service Calls and Good Intent Calls categories. 
 
Number of Overlapping Calls -      Percent of Overlapping Calls - 20.51% 
 
Number of Calls Within Town Limits -   Number of Calls In NB District -   
 
Automatic Aid Given – 25   Automatic Aid Received –  
 
Total Fire Loss - $44,500    Pre-incident Value - $644,800 
 
Percentage of Fire Loss – 6.9%  
 
 

182



183


	Notice for Public Hearings and Special Called Meeting - 18 May 2020
	Notice of Remote Electronic Meeting - Town Council Regular Meeting - 18 May 2020
	Public Hearing - Code Amendments
	Public Hearing - CZD 10 and 30 Garrison - 5.18.20
	April 27 2020 -Town Council Meeting Minutes - with jj revisions
	Monthly Tax Report for 05-11-2020
	Greenwood Park Phase One Final Plat
	Audit Contract for FY 2020
	Amendments to the Fee Schedule - May 2020
	TM May Report
	Public Street Commitment Applications
	Weaver Village Way-Aldi
	Weaver Village Way - Firehouse Subs, etc.
	Weaver Village Way - Residential
	Fox Lair Crossings
	Reems Creek Village
	Reems Creek Villas
	Creekside Village

	Code Amendments - Chapter 24 - Streets - May 2020
	Action on Code Amendments - May 2020
	Action on CZD for Garrison Branch Road - May 2020
	COVID-19 Update - May 2020
	Finance Dept - Quarterly Report 3-31-2020
	WPD May-Jul Quarterly Report
	FD Quarterly Report



